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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of SH
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”), | present the annual report of the

Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the "Group”) for the year ended 3|
March 2024 (the "“Year” or “FY2024").

The Group is principally engaged in providing electrical and mechanical
engineering (“E&M engineering”) services in Hong Kong. We focus our efforts
on the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and
air-conditioning system (“MVAC system”) and also provide services in relation
to low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems, including fire services
system, plumbing and drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue by approximately
HK$78.1 million, or 8.2%, from approximately HK$954.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (“Last Year" or “FY2023") to approximately HK$876.2
million for the Year. The revenue generated by projects of MVAC system
contributed 68.1% of total revenue of the Group whilst revenue generated by
projects of low voltage electrical system contributed 31.9% of total revenue of
the Group.

The Group recorded a loss for the Year of approximately HK$15.2 million (2023:
HK$ 1 1.0 million).

DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend any final dividend for the Year (2023: Nil).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
MVAC system

During the Year, the Group was awarded 5 projects (2023: 3) in relation to
MVAC system installation with an aggregate contract sum of approximately
HK$226.8 million (2023: HK$185.5 million). The awarded projects are not limited
to residential projects but also involving a MVAC system maintenance and
replacement project. The new projects, together with the continual progress of
projects awarded in previous years, would provide the Group with stable revenue
and earnings in the coming years.
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Low voltage electrical system

During the Year, the revenue contributed from projects of low voltage electrical
system to the total Group's revenue was approximately 31.9% (2023:22.4%).This
is consistent with the business plan of the Group to steadily increase the revenue
and profit generated from projects of the low voltage electrical system.

OUTLOOK

The property market in Hong Kong has experienced its share of challenges
in recent times, especially in the high interest rate and uncertain economic
environment. In this challenging environment for the industry, the tendering for
new private development projects is expected to reduce as property developers
are more cautious in the land bidding for private housing development. Owing to
the pricing pressure and reduced construction demand, the private development
in progress is also expected to slow down.

Looking forward, the upcoming year is expected to continue to be a challenging
period for the industry and the Group due to the abovementioned industrywide
challenges. Nevertheless, sufficient supply of land and housing is continued to be
the key direction of the Hong Kong Government. With the adjustments to the
demand-side management measures in relation to the reduction in property
stamp duty for residential properties, the overall transactions in the property
market have also been increased.

The Group has also been looking for ways to mitigate these challenges by
focusing on targeted projects and implementing various cost control measures
in order to remain competitive in the market. The Group will further expand
its service capabilities in the public sectors to capture additional business
opportunities amid the slowdown in private development projects. Also, the
Group has been more active in diversifying our businesses into other types of
E&M engineering services, including fire services system, plumbing and drainage
system. With our long-established reputation, client satisfaction, experience
and proven track record in the industry, the Group takes a positive attitude in
achieving a steady growth in the business and creating long term value to its
shareholders in the years to come.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management team and my fellow staff members for their contribution during
the Year. | would also like to express my sincere appreciation to our customers,
suppliers, subcontractors, other business partners and our shareholders for their
continuous support.

Yu Cheung Choy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong
Kong. We provide services in relation to the supply, installation and maintenance
of MVAC system, and also provide services in relation to low voltage electrical
system and other E&M systems, including fire services system, plumbing and
drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$78.1 million, or 8.2%, from
approximately HK$954.3 million for FY2023 to approximately HK$876.2 million
for FY2024. Major projects awarded and major projects undertaken in FY2024
are outlined below.

Projects awarded in FY2024

During FY2024, we were awarded 5 projects (2023: 3) with an aggregate
contract sum of approximately HK$226.8 million, which were related to MVAC
system installation (2023: HK$185.5 million).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the projects awarded in FY2024:
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Key scope of work B Date of award HK$'million
IETREE (f/Ffe)™ ERRM BEER
MVAC system installation for a property development Residential 18 September 2023 103.7
at Aberdeen, Hong Kong fFx ZZZ=FAATNA
BREAIFNNFERER OBHARZRAZRLE
MVAC system installation for a housing development Residential 16 October 2023 387
at Hung Shui Kiu, New Territories fFx ZZC=ETATAR
KB EERRER ORRARZRAZRLE
MVAC system installation for a housing development Residential 22 August 2023 310
at KaiTak, Kowloon fix “F-_ZHF\A=-1ZH
RRENEELRARNBHBREERZRALE
MVAC system installation for a housing development Residential [ March 2024 29.7
at Fanling New Territories fFx —Z_ME=A+-H
HRANENEERRARNBREBRZAZRRE
MVAC system installation for hospitals in Hong Kong Non-residential 24 May 2023 237
EANBRAENBEREEARLE FEE “E-=$RA-1MmA
Note: “Residential” refers to projects that involve residential flats while “Non-residential” refers to projects Htet - [FEF]ELSREEMENER - m [ IEE=E]

that do not involve residential flats.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWE DN

Major projects undertaken in FY2024

During FY2024, the Group continued to focus its efforts on the supply, installation
and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system. Revenue
contributed by projects relating to MVAC system and low voltage electrical
system accounted for approximately 68.1% and 31.9% respectively (2023:77.6%
and 22.4%).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects
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during
FY2024
Type (Residentiall Contract sum R-ZE-MEHE
Non-residential) CHEE e alle]
Key scope of work bl Date of award HK$'million HK$'million
IZIREE (% #fi%) ERAH BEER BEAR
Electrical system installation for a Residential 19 February 2021 2942 1190
proposed residential development at £ —Z--%¥-RthH
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
NERKSHRRETERARNERANLE
MVAC system installation for a Residential 2| December 2021 1454 809
proposed residential development at £ “Z-F+-A-t-H
KaiTak, Kowloon
SUERBHRRETERER VEHBREEZRLE
MVAC system installation for a Non-residential 5 October 2020 1710 692
commercial development at #EE —Z_TETALA
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDENBXEARERNRHARZIZATE
Electical system installation for a Residential 6 February 2022 1087 673
proposed development at = it S 2l N =
YauTong, Kowloon
NERENREERERNERZRLE
Electrical system installation for a Non-residential 23 September 2020 8838 572
commercial development at #EE " ZENA-+=H

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDENAFEREANERAALE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$78.1 million, or 8.2%, from
approximately HK$954.3 million for FY2023 to approximately HK$876.2
million for FY2024. Revenue contributed by projects relating to the supply,
installation and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system
was approximately 68.1% and 31.9% respectively (2023: 77.6% and 22.4%
respectively).

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$7.6 million, or 87.4% from
approximately HK$8.7 million for FY2023 to approximately HK$16.3 million
for FY2024. Our gross profit margin increased by approximately 1.0 percentage
point, from approximately 0.9% for FY2023 to approximately 1.9% for FY2024.
The increase in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the
change in the mix of projects undertaken in both years.

Other income

Other income for FY2024 decreased by approximately HK$7.4 million from
approximately HK$10.9 million for FY2023 to approximately HK$3.5 million for
FY2024.The decrease was mainly due to the fact that there was no government
grant received and recognised from the Employment Support Scheme launched
by The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$6.2 million).

Other loss

We recorded an other loss of approximately HK$4.5 million for FY2024, which
was mainly attributable to the fair value loss of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (2023: HK$4.2 million).

Net impairment loss recognised under expected credit loss model

We recognised a net impairment loss under expected credit loss model of
approximately HK$3.2 million for FY2024 (2023: HK$ 1.8 million).

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly represented administrative staff costs,
professional fees and depreciation. The amount decreased from approximately
HK$27.5 million for FY2023 to approximately HK$27.1 million for FY2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWE DN

Finance costs

Our finance costs represented interest expenses on bank borrowings and lease
liabilities, with an amount of approximately HK$2.2 million for FY2024 (2023:
HK$0.1 million).

Income tax credit

Due to the combined effect of the above factors, we recorded a loss before
taxation of approximately HK$17.3 million (2023: HK$14.0 million) and an
income tax credit of approximately HK$2.1 million (2023: HK$3.0 million)
was recognised as a result for FY2024. The effective tax rate for FY2024 was
approximately 12.3% (2023:21.5%).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$15.2 million for FY2024 (2023: HK$ | 1.0 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2024, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
approximately HK$228.9 million (2023: HK$244.1 million) and bank borrowings
of HK$35.0 million (2023: Nil).

As at 31 March 2024, the issued share capital of the Company was HK$4,000,000
divided into 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Cash position and fund available
During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with working

capital being financed by its operating cash flows, bank borrowings and the
retained profits.

As at 3| March 2024, the Group held bank balance and cash of approximately

HK$44.6 million (2023: HK$6 1.4 million). The Group did not hold any short term
bank deposit as at 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$52.6 million).

As at 3| March 2024, the current ratio of the Group was approximately |.6
times (2023: 1.6 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank Borrowings and Bank Facilities

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total bank borrowings of HK$35.0 million
(2023: Nil). As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$150.0 million (2023: HK$150.0 million). The
Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance obligations
of the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Mr.Yu Cheung Choy
("MrYU"), who is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman’’) and an executive
Director; and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”), who is the chief executive officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and an executive Director, pursuant
to the facility agreement including the following: (i) MrYu and Mr. Lau undertake
to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company directly or indirectly; and
(i) Mr.Yu and Mr: Lau shall remain as the chairman or director of the Company.
The facility agreement remains effective as at the date of this annual report.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's gearing ratio was approximately 15.3%,
calculated as the bank borrowings divided by the total equity as at the end of the
respective years and multiplied by 100%. As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not
have any bank borrowing and its gearing ratio was nil.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$172.2 million (2023: HK$ 169.4 million).

The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with covenants in relation to banking facility agreements, so as to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from the banks to meet its liquidity requirements. The Board is not
aware of any liquidity issue that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's capital expenditures for FY2024 amounted to approximately
HK$0.3 million (2023: HK$0.7 million), which was incurred for the purchase of
property and equipment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWE DN

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s revenue-generating activities were transacted in Hong Kong Dollar,
which is the functional currency of the respective group companies. The Board
considers that the Group was not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk,
and had not entered into any financial instrument for hedging. The Board will
review the Group’s foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time and
will apply hedging where necessary.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 3| March 2024, performance guarantees of approximately HK$145.2
million (2023: HK$178.9 million) were given by banks in favour of the Group's
customers as security for the due performance and observance of the Group's
obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group and its
customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its customers
to whom performance guarantees have been given, such customers may demand
the banks to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated in such demand. The Group
will become liable to compensate such banks accordingly. The performance
guarantees will be released upon completion of the contracts work.

The Group had no contingent liability as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings of approximately
HK$16.4 million (2023: HK$17.1 million) were pledged with a bank to secure the
banking facilities including performance guarantees issued by the bank.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$0.1 million in relation to acquisition of property and equipment contracted
but not provided for (2023: HK$O0. I million).

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 3| March 2024, the Group had a total of 202 employees (2023: 200). The
remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries, medical benefits
and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees based on
each employee’s qualification, position and seniority. The Group provides training
to its employees according to the work requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures during FY2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
The Group did not have any significant investments held as at 3| March 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have plans for material investments or capital assets as at 3|
March 2024.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance value for its shareholders (the “Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standard of corporate governance which
is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix CI to
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) as its own code of
corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied, to the extent
applicable and permissible, with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the operation
and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The management was
delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board currently consists of six Directors including three executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr.Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Dr. Law Man Wah

Save for (i) MrYu Cheung Choy is the father of Mr.Yu Ho Chi, and (ii) Mr.
Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert
confirmation on 7 July 2016, whereby they confirmed that, among other things,
since 21 July 2004, they have been actively cooperating with one another and
acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and concerted action on
all operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member
company within the Group; the Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board.
The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for
effective leadership. The biographical information of the Directors are set out on
pages 34 to 38 under the section headed "Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

All Directors had participated in continuous professional development and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the Year.

Ry oM\A*ﬁi

EEHRANRESAR  BR=%
WITESEN=RBIUIFNTES

BITES
AR L (E/E)
BIXE R (TR AEEL)
ANES L

BYFHITES
MR FRLE
FoRESLE
BXEEL

BT R CERBEIES LEMNE
Riyei R EERENEXLERE
—NFLtALHFZ—BITHERE
Bt RERR(EGPEIE) a2FF

MELA - +—BNEK  REDEEME
BT —B1TE EENEARAKE

EXERRINFIARLE R BAKUR
FTEEEERAHL —BITEN  EE
EREZHEMENS ¥ REXH
thER,HEREEF - A — Bt 5
NEES BRATEMRESTSHEAS
BRIyt - EESMAEKRBIIERNR
BB VETARBEE - BREEHW
BEREMSNAFTRFEMEIBAE[ES
RERERERBRE] —& -

EEEd
EFE%EM#W#WMX%CMM
TREFELMIFETERRE  LULGE
&Eﬁﬁﬂﬁ&& ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
BRTHEESERBEINER -

EREFHELHEBEFEXHRR AS

AARRRRBERENAFEDEZOE
FFeEk

Fik 202324 JEREE () HRAT 15



Corporate Governance Report
PResopa

The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is
summarised below:

AT AFEREFTCRINEALE
AlFeEE -

Training Received

(Notes)
Name of Directors EEHH 22
(F&E)
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MRS (EE) |
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) %'JY%?EE (7TECAEZE) |
Mr. Yu Ho Chi ANEE L 1,2
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MRFEEE |
Mr. Lee Wing Kee oKERAE |
Dr. Law Man Wah ENEEL 1,2
Notes: Bt
Reading articles, training materials and updates as regards legal and regulatory changes and matters EEHENEEZHARBITESE AR
of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties. Eﬁ BRI NE - FIIMEREFREM ©
2. Attending training courses/seminars/conferences/workshops on topics relating to the directors’ 2% DMEREEHE R ETRREFIRE
duties and the Listing Rules. N gES TED -
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERITHRAR

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be segregated.

The two positions are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr.Yu Cheung Choy is
the Chairman and Mr. Lau Man Ching is the Chief Executive Officer. MrYu is in
charge of the management of the Board and strategic planning of the Group. Mr.
Lau is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's business. The
Company considered that the division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman should at least
annually holds meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of other Directors. During the Year, the Chairman had a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and
they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”).

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with
academic and professional qualifications in the fields of construction, accounting
and finance. With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities
of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director gave a confirmation of
his independence to the Company, and the Company considered each of them is
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of the
Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming responsibility
of corporate governance and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans established by the Board and reporting
on the Group’s operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure effective
performance of the Board's responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group's senior
management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice can be sought
to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's expense
upon their request. All the Directors have been provided with monthly updates
on the Group’s performance and financial position to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 6 December 2016 a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”), a summary of which is set out as follows:

— A Board composed of appropriately qualified people with a broad range
of experience relevant to the business is important to effective corporate
governance and sustained commercial success of the Company;

— The Company endeavours to ensure that its Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are required
to support the execution of its business strategy and in order for the
Board to be effective;
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— The Company is committed to maintaining a Board with an appropriate
level of female members, which shall be no less than one by 3|
December 2024; and

— Selection of candidates for Board appointments will be based on
merit and candidates will be considered against a range of objective
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised six male Directors. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board and is
committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all aspects of its business. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration against a
range of objective criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Company targets to avoid a single gender Board and will appoint at least
one female Director by 3| December 2024. As at the date of this report, the
male to female gender ratio in the Company’s workforce (including executive
Directors and senior management) was 10.2:1.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). The
Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to set measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy and considered that it had been implemented effectively during
the Year.

MECHANISM TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND INPUTS TO
THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board, the
following mechanism has been established by the Board:

= Where appropriate, the Company shall arrange suitable and sufficient
resources to cover any matters relating to the obtaining of an
independent opinion by the Board, including but not limited to the
engagement of a legal team or any other professionals for such purpose;

— Where appropriate, the Directors shall give at least three working
days’ notice to the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”’) to obtain an independent opinion, including but not limited to
engaging a professional team for such purpose;
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Corporate Governance Report

— The Board is required to review its structure, size, composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity policy at least annually
to ensure that the composition of the Board complies with the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules, including maintaining a balanced
mix of executive and non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) so that the Board has a strong element of
independence which can effectively exercise independent judgment; and

— If all the independent non-executive Director have served on the Board
for more than nine years, the Company should consider to appoint a new
independent non-executive Director at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the said
mechanism during the Year and considered that it has been operating effectively
and will continue to monitor its implementation and effectiveness on an annual
basis.

Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days will be given
for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and propose matters to be discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and
accompanying papers shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board
meeting to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the
documents.

During the Year, the Board held four meetings. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings
and are given sufficient time to review the documents and information to be
discussed in Board meetings in advance. The attendance record of each Director
is set out below:
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Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EEHA HERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MR EAE (EE) 4/4
Mr: Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)  BIX & s T (TTIB#HEE) 4/4
Mr. Yu Ho Chi AVES L 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITEE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MR ELE 4/4
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FOoKESLSE 4/4
Dr. Law Man Wah BXEFLT 4/4
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Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional advice if
so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.

g CHEABARRMERT - XA
HEZEH BREZTGREHERE
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General Meetings RERE

During the Year, one general meeting of the Company, being the 2023 annual REREE XA BIT-RBREKX

general meeting of the Company, was held on 23 August 2023. 2 AR TE/\_ = __E/\ﬂ ‘f‘_

EI BTN _=—FRRBFRE

Number of
attendance

Name of Directors EEpR H IR E

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) RIS (EE) 171

Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)  BIX & f 4 (7748 %) 11

Mr. Yu Ho Chi NSRS /1

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITEE

Mr: Lam Yim Nam MARELE /1

Mr: Lee Wing Kee FoRERAE 1/

Dr. Law Man Wah ENEFT 1/

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and in particular; uses annual general meeting(s) or other general meetings to
communicate with them and encourage their participation.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wing Kee (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam
and Dr. Law Man Wah. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the relevant
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge, educational background, experience and diversity) of the
Board at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and selecting or
making recommendations to the Board in the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and (c) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans in place
for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical review of
such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or
fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is
a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall
be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set out as
follows:

(a) participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgement
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key

appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
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serving on the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (in the
case of candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board, giving

the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the benefit of

his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board/committee
meetings;

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their

powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the

constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or

the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among
other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where

applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience

shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with
such qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.

D emsedn 4

RAEE  RRREECRIT KR8 -

8

Number of
attendance
Name of Members REHE HERE
Mr. Lee Wing Kee (Chairman) FOKESLE (EE) I/
Mr: Lam Yim Nam MA LA 11
Dr. Law Man Wah EEE T 11

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
Year is listed below:

. assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
. considering the re-election of Directors; and
e reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Yim Nam (as chairman), Mr. Lee Wing Kee
and Dr. Law Man Wah.The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company'’s
website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include, but not
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management personnel and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the
policy on such remuneration; (b) making recommendations to the Board on
the specific remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (c) reviewing and approving management's remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

AEEREZESETHITERRIT

. FHABIFMITE SR 2B

0 EREEEE N

© RNEFRORE ABRSHE
It -

FHERR
ARAR=F—AE+=ANBRITH
MER® UIEEEBERE BE
B = BB IR TEERAR - A
KL (ERER)  FXBLLRE
XE L - HME AR OB RERN

F%I%Mﬁ&ﬁ@?%ﬁThE@

FMZEenBESERMRE ST
ek BV AERE T Al S — 2R o

FNZESHTIEBEBE(ETRRY)
QUMETREERSREERE ABMNEHHN
PR R BeHE - LARGEHIET IER M A iFE R
ENEFRZEFMTI LR MES
ZiREEZR  ORENRITEERSR
EEEBNEETHFNEARNESSIRLEE
FE(O2EEFENRRIEERENSE
BRI EEBENTMIAER  Rd) I
WITESNEFNREESIREES -

Fik 202324 JEREE (ER) FRAT 23



Corporate Governance Report
PResopa

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings. RAFE  FHEESCEBTMREE -
Number of
attendance

Name of Members REHA R

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (Chairman) MKmTE (FE) 212

Mr. Lee Wing Kee PRERE 212

Dr. Law Man Wah BN EEL 212

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
Year is listed below:

. considering the adoption of a performance-based incentive scheme;

e reviewing the bonus proposal for the executive Directors and senior
management for the Year; and

. considering the salary review proposal for Directors and senior
management for the financial year ending 31 March 2025.

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their
respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is
fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

Senior management's remuneration of the Group for the Year falls within the
following bands:

REEFMNEESETHITIEREMAT ¢

s ZRIRANARR B ER BB

2

. ERNAEEERARTEERSR
ERENEAEFE &

c EEEE S -_RE=f=+—

BLEMBREEEERSREELE
B g i2aE o

ENEELSREEENMESBRT
HEEBREREMB RN KRR (D
B) MHEFEL2EFHZEeNE
& ARENKRBMRTHRKEE
EENRRAERENHFMABERNEGS
BT RAR M6 ©

B R E T E K
AEBERAFENSREEENH M
FUATEE :

Number of
individuals

AE

1,000,001 #&TTZ 1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference
on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr
Lee Wing Kee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the relevant code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to,
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review the interim and
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annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses REEERESEERTHRFERS
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but ZAALBERZERSE - BREEE T
also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal BEZEETBRERENZHHNTLE
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports. BIRZEERERAR QRSN Eﬁ&ﬂzf;#ﬁ
ERETEAER - LR R FOAGIAR
E o
During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. RAFE  BZZEGCBITMREE -
Number of
attendance
Name of Members REHE H R B
Dr. Law Man Wah (Chairman) BNEELT (LE) 272
Mr: Lam Yim Nam MRFEEE 212
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoKELE 212
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In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt
with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is
listed below:

. reviewed the Group's annual financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023 and interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 September 2023 and the related results announcements, documents
and other matters or issues raised by the external auditor;

. reviewed the terms of engagement of the external auditor;

. recommended to the Board, for the approval by the Shareholders, of the
re-appointment of the auditor of the Company; and

. discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out
annually.

The accounts for the Year were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose
term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the 2024 AGM"). The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company at the 2024 AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code
and other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the Company'’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's auditor is set
out below:

RY 172 M \Aiﬁt‘:
ﬁ%%‘}‘ﬁﬂ&ﬁ
TERERABEESHESSRE
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ER E’]Eﬁ(ﬁ&%%ﬁ%k?ﬁ%%mﬂ‘a”
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TEENEIIRBESEER TR
%@ﬂﬁ¢L%FEE&§$WﬁHT
AlkaRFM(E)  UAERBBEAA
MEEBERAREHRE -

RAEE  EFRORITEFQHIR
SEELEE  AATMTLEEAT
AR AR A AR LA RE R
-

R BT BN &
RAFE - BN ENADRZEE S
ez T

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered SIRMHRK B ENER
HK$’000
FH&xT
Audit services EZIRTE
— Audit of consolidated financial statements — FBAXAR A B HRE 1,578
— Review of condensed consolidated - RGP A SRR
financial statements 262
1,840
Non-audit services* IEEIZARTE * 227
Total: BEt 2,067
* The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services, internal controls review and other 2 FERRBEEBERBARRBER - AEPE

advisory services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the
Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit different
commercial needs.
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Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr Tse"), the representative of Uni-1, was appointed as the
named Company Secretary.

Mr. Lau Man Ching, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer; is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse has taken
no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS” COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions. The Company has adopted its shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders” Communication Policy”) to ensure that Shareholders’
views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through
the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and corporate
communications on the Stock Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and
the Company's website at http://www.shunhingeng.com. The general meetings
of the Company provide a platform for communication between the Board and
the Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, will be available
to answer Shareholders’ questions at general meetings. The external auditor of
the Company will also be invited to attend the annual general meetings of the
Company to answer questions about the conduct of audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website, where
information and updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate
governance practices, biographical information of the Board members and
other information are available for public access. Media interviews are available
on a regular basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community. Shareholders and the investment
community may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the Directors or
management of the Group. Such questions, requests and comments can be
addressed to the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar; Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, |6 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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The Board has reviewed the Shareholders' Communication Policy and considered
that it has been effectively implemented during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should be
deposited to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Units 603-606, 6/F Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan
Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner;, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Company Secretary by post to Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |,
Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or via
email at the contact information as provided on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by Shareholders at general meeting

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Articles of Association
or the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and
supplemented. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition. The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Units 603-606, 6/F Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of the 2024 AGM will be voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and
reasonable disclosure of information to the Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the following

manners:
e delivery of annual and interim reports to Shareholders, if required;
. publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on

the Stock Exchange's website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

. general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication
channel between the Board and Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows
of the Group for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management has provided a
confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of
these systems for the Year.

Risk management

The Company has already reviewed its risk management framework and
processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise
that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular, the Company
has developed, approved and implemented a risk management system, which
is defined and supported by its endorsed risk management policy. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.
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The Company’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises risk identification,
risk assessment, risk response, and risk monitoring and reporting. These processes
are performed at least once a year to address changes in the Group’s business
environment.

Business continuity plan

As an integral part of risk management, the Company has formulated and
documented a Business Continuity Plan (*BCP”), which is reviewed regularly
and updated from time to time whenever the Board thinks fit. The BCP enables
senior management to preserve stakeholder value in the event of a crisis/incident
by responding promptly to the situation and resuming the Group’s business
functions to normal situation as quickly and efficiently as possible.

Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business aspects such
as revenue management, expenditure management, human resources and payroll,
cash and treasury management, financial reporting, compliance and information
technology. The internal control measures are supervised by management team
including executive Directors. The management team is responsible to identify
risks and internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of
the Group from time to time and implementing additional control measures,
if necessary, to improve the internal control system. Results of the internal
assessments would be reported to the Audit Committee, which is responsible to
review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting system and
internal controls system of the Group.

Internal audit function

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems, covering all material controls such as financial,
operational and compliance controls. In addition, the Board has appointed an
international accountancy firm to review the internal control systems of the
Group on an on-going basis which covers all major operations of the Group.The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company for the Year were effective and adequate.

Accounting and financial reporting functions

The Board conducted a review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting functions for the Year, and considered the above resource
components to be adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance
with all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company keeps
Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the latest regulatory
updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy.
The Company's dividend policy aims to allow Shareholders to participate in
the Company's profit and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for the
Group'’s future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would
consider various factors including but not limited to the Group'’s overall results
of operation, financial condition, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, liquidity position, future expansions plans, the amount
of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business, other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group and any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any declaration and payment of the dividends by the Company will be subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman lIslands, the Articles
of Association, the Listing Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio.
The Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.The dividend policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated Articles of Association was adopted by a special
resolution passed by the Shareholders at the 2022 annual general meeting of
the Company held on | September 2022 and is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. During the Year, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENCSREEERE

Executive Directors

Mr.Yu Cheung Choy (BT Ef), aged 60, is the Chairman and an executive
Director: He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. As the founder
of the Group, he became a controlling shareholder of Golden Light Engineering
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in March 1987
and established Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in August 1987. He is primarily
responsible for leading the overall development, business strategies and expansion
of the Group. MrYu is a director of Prosperously Legend Limited (‘‘Prosperously
Legend"), which is a substantial Shareholder within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)
and the controlling Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules).

Mr.Yu obtained a bachelor degree of engineering (building service management)
with honours from Washington InterContinental University in the United States
through distance learning in March 2004.

Mr.Yu has over 30 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry. His
experience includes project management, supervision and execution for various
E&M engineering services projects.

Mr.Yu is the father of Mr.Yu Ho Chi, an executive Director.

Mr. Lau Man Ching (813X %), aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He
joined the Group and became the sales and marketing manager of Shun Hing
HK in October [995. He then became the director of Shun Hing HK in February
2000. He is primarily responsible for directing the overall management and
business operations of the Group. Mr. Lau is a director of Simply Grace Limited
("Simply Grace”), which is a substantial Shareholder within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lau obtained a master degree of business administration in management
from the Southeastern University in the United States through distance learning
in February 1996. He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic) and Hong Kong Management Association in Hong Kong in
September 1994. He was also awarded a higher diploma in building services
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in Hong Kong in November 1987. He is also the
authorised signatory and technical director in the category of registered specialist
contractor (sub-register of ventilation works), and the category of minor works
contractor type E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing
HK.

Mr. Lau has over 35 years in E&M engineering services industry. His experience
include business management, project management, supervision and execution
for various E&M engineering services projects.

Mr.Yu Ho Chi (BI7& %), aged 35, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
27 June 2016 and a member of the Audit Committee on 6 December 2016. He
was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive Director with
effect from |3 January 2020 and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee
then. MrYu Ho Chi is also the director of a subsidiary of the Company.

MrYu Ho Chi graduated from the University of Melbourne in Australia with a
bachelor degree of commerce in 2009. He has been a certified public accountant
under Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2016. He
has been also a member of CPA Australia since July 2013,

Mr.Yu Ho Chi worked for a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from January 2016 to September 2019 and his last position was
Deputy Head of Investment Department. He was employed by an international
accounting firm, in the assurance practice and advisory practice between 2010
and 2016.

Mr.Yu Ho Chi is the son of MrYu Cheung Choy, the Chairman, an executive
Director and a controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENCSREEERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (“Mr. Lam”) (%K% ), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lam obtained a master degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 1995. He also obtained
a bachelor degree of business administration with honours from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 1980.

Mr. Lam has held several positions in various banks. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong)
Limited since December 2019. He was an independent director of Shenzhen
Rural Commercial Bank from May 2012 to May 2018. He was the deputy
chief executive of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to
April 2011, and was responsible for overseeing retail banking business. He also
held various positions in the group companies of Bank of China Group and
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, from August 1980 to April 2011, and was
responsible for managing the business operations of the group companies.

Mr. Lam has been an honorary adviser of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
since 2011. He was a visiting professor of the Vocational Training Council
from September 201 | to August 2015. He was an adjunct professor in the
department of finance of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from March
2011 to 28 February 2014. He was a member of Hong Kong Banking Industry
Training Advisory Committee from August 2010 to July 2012. He was a director
of Community Chest of Hong Kong from June 2006 to March 201 |. He was
a member of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee from
April 2009 to March 201 |. He was a member of the Chongging Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FFEBIA RBUA R &% E
EMZBE) from January 2008 to December 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee Wing Kee (“Mr. Lee”) (ZZKE), aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of science (engineering) (civil engineering)
from the Queen Mary College, University of London in the United Kingdom in
August 1976. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
in Hong Kong since August 983,

Mr. Lee joined Shui On Building Contractors Limited in April 1985 and held
various positions in the company. Among the various positions he held, he was
the deputy managing director of SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited
from July 2013 to June 2016. He was the deputy managing director of Shui On
Construction Company Limited from July 2013 to July 2014 and the executive
director of Shui On Construction Company Limited from October 2000 to June
2013. All of the above companies are subsidiaries of SOCAM Development
Limited, a company whose shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 983).

Mr. Lee was a member of the disciplinary board panel of the Commissioner
for Labour from March 2009 to February 2015. He was a member of the
Committee on Employees’ Compensation from January 2009 to December 2014.
He was the chairman of Construction Workers Qualification Committee of
Construction Workers Registration Authority from May 2006 to October 2010.
He was a council member of Hong Kong Construction Association from April
2003 to June 2016, the vice president of Hong Kong Construction Association
from 2005 to 2013 and the chairman of the building committee of Hong Kong
Construction Association from 2005 to 2013 respectively. He was a member
of Construction Workers Registration Authority of Environment, Transport and
Works Bureau from October 2004 to October 2010. He was a member of
Building Subcommittee of Land and Building Advisory Committee from April
2003 to March 2007 and a member of Construction Industry Training Authority
from September 2003 to May 2007. He was the deputy honorary treasurer of
The Hong Kong Construction Association, Ltd., the chairman of the Training Sub-
committee and the vice chairman of the Training, Health and Safety Committee
of The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd. from 2003 to 2005 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENCSREEERE

Dr. Law Man Wah (“Dr. Law”) (83X %), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on | November 2019. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Dr. Law graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree of business administration in October 1975 and obtained a master
degree in business administration from Brunel University (currently known
as Brunel University London), United Kingdom through distance learning in
May 1992, a master of science degree in finance from City University of Hong
Kong in November 1995 and a master of business (accounting) from Monash
University, Australia through distance learning in November 2000. In October
2011, he was conferred Doctor of Business Administration by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, major in finance and accounting. Dr. Law also holds various
professional qualifications, including Certified Management Accountant in United
States of America, Certified Banker and Certified Financial Management Planner
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and a member of its training committee. Moreover, Dr. Law
holds the International Certificate in Banking Risk and Regulation from the Global
Association of Risk Professionals.

Dr. Law has over 30 years' experience in the finance industry. He worked for
Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd. (“NCB") from February 1983 to September
2001 and held various positions in NCB. He was the deputy general manager of
NCB from March 1992 to September 200! and was responsible for accounting,
financial management, information technology, organisation and method, etc. He
was the director of NCB from August 1994 to April 2007. Dr. Law worked for
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to October 2010 where
his last position held was head of financial management and general manager
of financial management department. He was involved in the restructuring and
listing of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited in 2001 and 2002. During his
terms of appointment in Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, he was responsible
for accounting, financial compliance, budgeting preparation and control, etc. He
also served as director of BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited from October [999
to March 2009. Currently, Dr. Law is a member of examination moderation
committee of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a specialist of Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic & Vocational Quialifications.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior management

Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Mars (“Mr. Wong”) (E8l##), aged 53, is the director of
Shun Hing HK. He worked as project manager of our Group from 2003 to 2006,
re-joined our Group as general manager of Shun Hing HK in March 2020 and
was promoted to director of Shun Hing HK in April 2022. He has over 29 years
of experience in E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible
for overseeing and managing project administration and business marketing,

Mr. Wong obtained a master degree of science in building services engineering
from The University of Hong Kong in December 2003. He obtained a bachelor
of engineering in mechanical engineering from The University of Hong Kong in
November 1995.

Mr.:Wong has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council since June
2004. He also has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
and the Institution of Mechanical Engineers since June 2004 and April 2004
respectively.

Mr. Lee Yui (ZFH), aged 52, is the project director of Shun Hing HK. He joined
our Group in October 2006 as project manager and was promoted to project
director in April 2016. He has over 28 years of experience in E&M engineering
services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing project
administration and business marketing.

Mr. Lee Yui obtained a master degree of science in engineering (mechanical
engineering) from The University of Hong Kong in November 2001. He
obtained a bachelor of engineering in mechanical engineering from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic)
in November 1994. He obtained a higher diploma in mechanical engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) in October 1992.

Mr. Lee Yui has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council since
August 2003. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since January 2016. He has been a fellow of the Institute of Plant Engineers in
the United Kingdom since February 2003. He is the authorised signatory in the
category of minor works contractors Types A and E (Classes Il and lll) with the
Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK. He is also a registered professional
engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers Registration Board since
June 2017. He has been a registered energy assessor of Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department since December 2018. He has also obtained Grade |
Plumber's Licence with the Water Supplies Department since January 2020.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENCSREEERE

Mr. Lee Chun Mo (ZHRE), aged 55, is the project director of Shun Hing HK.
He joined our Group in March 2002 as project manager and was promoted to
senior project manager in April 2016 and project director in April 2024. He has
over 28 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing and managing project execution, operation and cost
control matters.

Mr. Lee Chun Mo obtained a bachelor of engineering in building services
engineering with first class honours from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in December 2005. He was awarded a higher certificate in mechanical
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November [991. He is also the authorised
signatory in the category of Ventilation Works, and the category of minor works
contractors Type E (Classes |, Il and [ll) with the Buildings Department for Shun
Hing HK.

Mr. Chan Ho Kei (“Mr. Chan”) (FRJ&E), aged 37, is the financial controller of
our Group. He joined our Group in March 2016 as a financial controller. He
is primarily responsible for managing the financial operations and accounting
functions of our Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree in business administration (major in
professional accountancy) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in July
2010.

Mr. Chan has over |3 years of experience in accounting and audit services. Prior
to joining our Group, he was employed by an international accounting firm as a
manager in the assurance department, and was responsible for providing audit
services. He has been a certified public accountant under Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2014 and a member of The Institute
of Chartered Accounts in England and Wales since August 2022. He has also
been an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The
Chartered Governance Institute since November 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr.Tse Kam Fai (% #818) aged 60, was appointed as the Company Secretary on
9 May 2016. MrTse is a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). He is also a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tse is currently the company secretary of
several companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
executive director of a local professional firm providing regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and corporate secretarial services to listed and unlisted
corporations. Mr. Tse has more than 30 years' solid experience in handling listed
company secretarial and compliance related matters.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The Directors are pleased to present the Board the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development, and also the Group’s performance during
the Year are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” respectively from pages 4 to 6 and pages
7 1o |3 of this annual report.

The details of key performance indicators are shown in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to |3 of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and relationships with employees are discussed in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) which is published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s operations, many of which are
beyond the Group’s control, including but not limited to those relating to the
business and the industry. Some of the major risks the Group facing include the
following:

. the Group operates in a competitive E&M engineering services industry.
Elevated competition with market participants may lead to lower profit
margins and loss of market share;

. the change in overall market condition, both locally and globally, which
may have adverse impact in the E&M engineering services industry, such
as unfavourable change in project timeline and fluctuation in raw material
and equipment;

42 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2023-24

EEMAREEFEFERENASKE
AEENEEZSFAMBRE -

FTEREHR
ARRRE—REREERAR - HMBAR
AIENEEFBIREEETIZRE -

KB
AEBARFENEBLRE  NEBEAKRK
EBERNIWARAEBRAFER
KA DHERAFERFIZCARN [
FRE | REFTZEBAETERENRED
1] FE

AREMERHBIANANERFETE I3
BIEEBwmEIIT] —& -

REBBREKRR - BFHEBEERER
RIE A K LR B M BAMR - 12 TS PR B
THTEUE R AR D RMILNIRE g8 &
BRRE ([ESGHRE ) himit o

FRERKIRERER
AEBEZ S RETER  HEFFZT
EAREEES - BFRETRNELMN
EBRITERENRR - NEBEEERAN
ETEARBREE TSR

: AEERBEFHNNEE TR
REE - MG2EEHNNE B
FHAEEYFNBEXRTREETSMN
BN

s i 2 REBRETISERNAES
HBRETRERBXEXTAE
2 A B R R R ER AN
(LA R R S iR S (BRI ED



. the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each project,
which in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to be involved,
and will be affected by fluctuation in raw material and equipment price;

. failure by our customers to make remittance of progress payments of our
projects on time and in full, which may lead to mismatch of cashflows and
adverse effect on our liquidity position; and

. the potential unfavourable change in project timeline which may adversely
affect the manpower planning and financial performance of the Group.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The ESG Report of the Company for the Year contained the information
required under Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules is published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and operation of the
Group.

Further discussion on the compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
also contained in the ESG Report which is published on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company's website.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of
the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to
employees and emphasis the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The
Group aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences
to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

Further discussion on the key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers is also contained in the ESG Report which is published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 63.

The Board did not propose any final dividend in respect of the year ended 3|
March 2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the Shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 23 August 2024 to Thursday, 29 August 2024, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, |6 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22 August 2024.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company's reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$77,050,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements. There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 135 to 36 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Dr. Law Man Wah

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr.Yu Cheung
Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching will retire by rotation at the 2024 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of MrYu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching, being executive Directors,
has renewed his service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 3 January 2023. Either party has the right to terminate the
service agreement by giving not less than six months’ written notice to the other
party.

MrYu Ho Chi, being an executive Director; has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on |3 January 2023.
Either party has the right to terminate the service agreement by giving not less
than six months’ written notice to the other party.

Each of Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. Lee Wing Kee, being independent
non-executive Directors, has renewed his letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 3 January 2023. Either party
has the right to terminate the letter of appointment by giving not less than three
months’ written notice to the other party.
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Dr. Law Man Wah, being independent non-executive Director, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on | November 2022. Either party has the right to terminate the letter of
appointment by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other

party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set out
in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors consider that
those related party transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter [4A of the Listing
Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of independence. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of, the Company or in any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at 3| March 2024 or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT EENBSITHRAERR S REER S
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES HWEZRAE

As at 3| March 2024, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief RZZFEZWAF=A=+—H EFFEKRK
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of A Bl m 1T A B AR B 3 (F 7] #HE
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of  JAE (FE& RFE 7 K EIERHIE XV EL) &Y
the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant A& f5 ~ AR RE#EEZEF - HERE
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions B RBAEGPIEXVERSET7 R85 ERA
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), MERRAREZM(BEREREES
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in NEREGRDIRZF R R EENR R
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model B KRR ) ERSORE - HIRE
Code, are set out below: B 5 R HAE GG ZE 352 (RZBE LR Z 1G]
it &R Me RSOk R - SARRIRE
SRR ERERIOAE AT ¢

Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share
shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held FrieA&AR
Name of Directors Capacity Short position iRt/ ERTRA Notes
SR a #R/ KR RERGHE BOES (13
Yu Cheung Choy Interests held jointly with another Long position 246,000,000 61.50% ,3
BIRE person/Interest of controlled e
corporations
BR—BALHFERAR
B/ R EEER
Lau Man Ching Interests held jointly with another Long position 54,000,000 13.50% 2,3
2IxE person/Interest of controlled e
corporations
BR—B ALHFERAR
s/ AR
Notes: HEE
Theses 246,000,000 shares of the Company are held through Prosperously Legend, which is wholly- ! F255246,0000000% AN A 1A% 19 7933 i Prosperously
owned by MrYu Cheung Choy. Legend 7 - 1Ml Prosperously Legend i &1 & 81 55
ERERER -
2. Theses 54,000,000 shares of the Company are held through Simply Grace, which is wholly-owned 2. 5554,000,00008 A< 2 FIAR {5 T35 i8Simply Grace
by Mr. Lau Man Ching, 8 MSimply GraceH2IN B R E2EHH -
3. On 7 July 2016, Mr.Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert 3. RZZE—RELALH  aiRMAEERIIXE
confirmation, whereby they confirmed that, among other things, since 21 July 2004, they have been FAEFT —BITHRRE Bt KRE®R
actively cooperating with one another and acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and (HhBaE) g —2TNFLA-+—Hi - &
concerted action on all operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member E-EHEBRBAIER BT BERER
company within the Group. FBERERREREUAREGEAERNEKE

REIBREBERHBR BT -
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or chief executives of the
Company or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 3| March 2024.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, the following
Shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short position in
shares and underlying shares of Company as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share
shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held N
Name Capacity Short position frsie,/ ERTRA Notes
i3 &t He/ %R RERGHE BHES (1F:3
Prosperously Legend Beneficial owner Long position 246,000,000 61.50%
EAHEEA a8
Simply Grace Beneficial owner Long position 54,000,000 13.50% 2
ERBAA iR
Notes: B e -

Prosperously Legend is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy.

2. Simply Grace is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Man Ching,

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at

31 March 2024.

Prosperously Legend BT R e - 2 B R ©

2. Simply Grace RBIX S E2BHER °

B EXFBEBEEN KRB mE= A
=SB RARA TR EE SR
BI% 336 IRRIF B M - B
s A PR 2 R BB 9 S AEBEIR 15 o
BHEETAR -
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme")
pursuant to the written resolutions of the then shareholders passed on 6
December 2016. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to full time or part time employee, Directors (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive Directors), any supplier;
any customer, any service provider, any Shareholder, any adviser or consultant of
the Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(I)  The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issue at the time dealings in
the Shares first commence on the Stock Exchange, i.e. 40,000,000 Shares,
unless separate shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which
must not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, which represents
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

(2) The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

50 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2023-24

ESETRSXZNEESTA
ARBIERMBLESTA - (EREFETT
EHERHHITR/TA - ARBAZEE
SFHARSHEER  RAFEERE
EXZENARETRIFTRENRE -

IE AR RECH &
RARBBRENR-_ZE—XNE+AN
HBAMNEEAZRENERES
(MRS - BREFTESCENE
BEAEERNAEENEHSFBES -
EEX(BERTES  FRTESIEL
FEMITESR) - EAEER - EEF
ERRGIRMEE - AR - E[HEA
ASKERREBRE  (FARERASE
EFTEE RV E BN SR B3R -

BTSN 2T BHIT

() WREBREFSIRAEETME
AR AT Bl TIRE M 2 508
B (Bt s - TEREREER
WERT B A K B ] Kb BB AR 4
T ENERRE R BE AR AE ) 81718
BARERC B REBEITHR M A8
BRIFESKRESITHOE - TRIG
HEANSBBERDEXARERR
FTEERE TGO M I10%(ED
40,000000f% %15 ) + BB HEB
AR 2 BEITARANH) 30% o

RAREBE - RIEBERETE
A 4317 /9 IR 17 48 B 40,000,000
FER% R - RANIRE BEIMEE 817
B3 9 10% °

)  RAEMEI2ERHE - AREER
T Ko 7 &2 B ] E b B AR A 7T 2
KR ERE (BREEITES R A
TR BB AR ) 1T (30 1M ) B A IR
ABITRATGEATEITHRGD 2
B THEBAAAREKE BT
AEAHY 19 o



(3) The subscription price in respect of any option shall be at the discretion
of the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
Shares on the offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(0) the nominal value of the Share.

4) an option may (and may only) be exercised by the grantee at any time or
times during the option period (which shall not be more than 10 years
from the offer date of that option) to be determined and notified by the
Directors to the grantee.

5) HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company be way of
consideration for the grant.

(6) The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for which
an option must be held before an option can be exercised.

(7)  the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until the close of
business on the date falling on the last day of the period of ten (10) years
after the adoption date, i.e. 6 December 2016.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 19 December 2016.

No share option has been granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption and up to the date of this annual report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr.Yu Cheung Choy, Mr. Lau Man Ching, Prosperously Legend and Simply Grace
(together, the “Covenantors™) have entered into the deed of non-competition
on 6 December 2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking”) in favour
of the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to
time), under which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally undertaken
to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that none of their
respective close associates (other than members of the Group) shall, during the
period that (a) the Shares remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and (b) either the
Covenantors and their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of,
not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings of the Company; or (c)
any of the Covenantors or their respective close associates remains as a director
of any member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own account,
in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or company, among
other things, carry on, participate or be interested, engaged or otherwise involved
in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder; partner, agent or
otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly
or indirectly be involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or
may compete, with the business of the Group or undertaking and any other new
business which the Group may undertake from time to time after the listing of
the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with
the terms of Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual declarations and
made reasonable enquiry and confirmed the compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-Competition Undertaking by the Covenantors during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed "“Share Option Scheme” in this
Directors’ Report and also Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no
other equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during
the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March 2024 are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total bank borrowings of HKS35.0 million
(2023: Nil). As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$150.0 million (2023: HK$150.0 million). The
Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance obligations
of the controlling Shareholders, namely Mr.Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man
Ching, pursuant to the facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr.Yu and Mr.
Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company directly
or indirectly; and (i) Mr.Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the chairman or director
of the Company. The facility agreement remains effective as at the date of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest customer
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 25.6%
and 67.6% of the Group’s total revenue respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 5.9% and 15.8% of the total direct costs of the
Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any other Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration offered to the employees of the Group generally includes
salaries, medical benefits and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries
of its employees based on each employee's qualifications, position and seniority.
The Group will review its remuneration package annually. The Group provides
a defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.

On 6 December 2016, the Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which full time or part time employees, including Directors, of the
Company and its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the
Company's ordinary shares.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 6 December 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties
and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor; approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b)
monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them; and (c) reviewing the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. LamYim Nam and Mr. Lee
Wing Kee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2024 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the 2024 AGM.

By order of the Board
SH Group (Holdings) Limited
Yu Cheung Choy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

To the Members of SH Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SH Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 63 to |34, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024 and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B B R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REFLER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were FAREZFEESREBERMANEERHE

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the AR APEEMBRENET TR
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the BEEZMEIE  GEFHEISAERMETE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, B4R & MM EA LKL EE RN HEITERE

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

REFEXEE

B BT EHELERIERERNE
ﬁl o

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREZTEERRERERZAR

Revenue recognition for engineering service contracts

TRERB A MR

We identified the recognition of revenue for engineering service
contracts as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement and
estimates by management in determining the stage of completion
and the budget costs of engineering service contracts in progress.
HPERR IRERBSONREERRBREZER - RE
REEENBE T IRERMETHT IERKEAONTAERK
AR T BN HET R AEE -

The contract revenue generated from engineering service
contracts amounting to HK$876,177,000 was recognised in the
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2024.
TITEBRBEHEENEHIKRES76,177000E TRBE—F
“MOF=A=+—HILFEERER -
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
engineering service contracts included:

B TR A MK aTERRIZF 815

g Understanding and evaluating management's process
in estimation of the contract revenue, budget cost and
determination of completion status of the engineering
service contracts;

THREFMLERERAAONE  BEXRANRE
EIRZRBA T TARENRIE

. Agreeing the total contract value to the contracts
and variation orders (if any), agreements or other
correspondence, on a sample basis;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

BEFEXER

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

BARELSEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREZTEERRERERZAR

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity using the input method
at the end of each reporting period. As set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, the management exercises
judgements in estimating the total contract costs, which are
prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major subcontractors, suppliers

or vendors involved and the experience of the management.

Changes in estimates or the actual outcome will affect the
revenue to be recognised.

EEE2EZRERRERRAEZSENEHEH T IR
BRRHER AW - MAFAMBRRM 478 EEBD
R MERT RS AR ERHE - BRAEIREEER
BRESNEIRRAGER  HEAXENRENREARE

BEEMNKZRMER A2 BERERETELTHER
ik E o

Testing the contract costs recognised to date
by checking to supporting documents including
the certificates issued to the subcontractors,
invoices issued by suppliers/vendors and/or their
correspondences or other documents issued before
and subsequent to year end date to evaluate the
progress of the respective projects, on a sample basis;
and

RARESEEREOKRAE  HA/KEZRAX
- BRERREBLEANEE  fHENEh
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AEMEM M - UFHE SR B ER GREE
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Evaluating the reasonableness of percentage of
completion of engineering service contracts by
comparing the percentage calculated based on costs
incurred at the end of the reporting period against that
calculated based on external surveyors’ certifications,
and investigating any significant differences identified.
HEIERRBEOTIANLRERE TS
HERENBRERREEERAFTENA DL HE
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TaENH  WHHEPERNEAEAERETH
z o

Fik 202324 JEREE (ER) HRAT 57



Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B B R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)
Key audit matters

BEFEXER

BRELEIE(EF)
How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREZTEERRERERZAR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

EZRUFARENEERMENG

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of
trade receivables and contract assets to the Group'’s consolidated
financial position and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses
(“"ECL") of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at
the end of the reporting period.

HPIE BRI E 5 RUGIA M A B ERERN G RREREZ
FH RESESZRURERANEEY ESKEGEAY
BARRANBRERN LR E EEERBEHREZEK
REMANEERREERR(BREEBRRDMFRE
B R E R E A o

As at 3| March 2024, the Group's trade receivables and contract
assets amounted to HK$145,777,000 and HK$226,107,000
respectively. As disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised a net impairment loss
allowance of trade receivables of HK$954,000 and recognised a
net impairment loss allowance of contract assets of HK$367,000
respectively for the year and the Group's lifetime ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to HK$1,512,000 and
HK$ 1,777,000 respectively as at 31 March 2024.
R-T_NF=A=+—H BEEEEZFERKFELE
#YEE ) R A 145,777,000 7T 52 226,107,00058 7T © # a0 4R
EMBHRRMAIIMKE - EEERNFADHERES
& Y5 R TRORL (BB 1R 1B R 954,000 B TT R R B KB E R
BEEBREFE3670008T MR _E_MF=A=+—
B EXENEZRURELRENEEZHBEHEEER
431,512,000/ 7T K 1,777,000 7T ©
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets included:
BPEBESREFELENEE ZRENENEF
B

. Understanding process on how the management
estimates the impairment loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets;
THREEBEGTEDRBFRARENEE ZR
BEEERERAERE

g Testing the accuracy of trade receivables ageing analysis
as at 31 March 2024, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant sales
invoices;
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Key audit matters

BEFEXER

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

BARELSEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREZTEERRERERZAR

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,

management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime

ECL of trade receivables and contract assets individually.
The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing,

repayment history and/or past due status of the respective
customers. Estimated loss rates are based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the financial instruments
and are adjusted for forward-looking information.

HAERE MR T4 E - EEBERE @RGSR
BHRWFELRANEENEPRANEESESHE - 714
DEREEREFHABEETR R - EFEL R 3%
BEAARAE - fAFHEE R AN @ M T AARFHBHNE
SEEREHX - WRBAEEER TIAHAE -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Evaluating management's basis and judgement in
determining impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 March
2024, including their identification of credit-impaired
balances, and the basis of estimated loss rates applied
to each customer (with reference to the historical
default rates and forward-looking information including
subsequent settlement pattern of each customer); and
AfAEEEEBEER T _MF=A=1t—HE
SR FIAR A KB ERREBBRBERFTRA
MEERHE - BRREHEREREAROER
AREAREEPHMABRRELE(K2ER
FRAORLAEEERBREEPNHREER
X)) R

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
TR A M EHRRWT 3 P EBEE S EWIE R
BHEERBETHAEE -
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our EERMEEREMBREROETST - B

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
estimate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEBEREMEEBAR

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=RA=1T—-HLHEE

2024 2023
—ECNmEF —TC=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FET THETT
Revenue Wz 5 876,177 954,255
Direct costs HEKA (859,888) (945,599)
Gross profit EH 16,289 8,656
Other income H A 7 3,471 10,902
Other loss HEE 7 (4,536) (4215)
Net impairment loss recognised TRHEEEEENXIE THR
under expected credit loss model B F R E R (3,221) (1,762)
Administrative expenses THRA (27,127) (27,541)
Finance costs BB 8 (2.217) (49)
Loss before taxation PR3 A ES 18 9 (17,341) (14,009)
Income tax credit PrSEE % 10 2,130 3,007
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEBEEERX
for the year ] (15,211) (11,002)
Loss per share BRER
Basic (HK cents) AR GBI I (3.8) (2.8)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

As at 3| March 2024
RZZZMFE=A=+—H

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2024 2023
—ElEF —E=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
tiks3 FHET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property and equipment EISE I3 17,387 18,361
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 2,350 599
Deposits Be 6 2919 2,858
Debt instruments at amortised cost BB HERASBRMER TR 18 6,665 6,523
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRD
profit or loss THEE 19 19,951 40,191
Deferred tax assets BT IR E 24 8,683 6,553
57,955 75,085
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B 5 WA 15 145,777 67,150
Other receivables, deposits Hib U KRIE e Rk
and prepayments TEfTRIE 16 17,045 13,572
Contract assets BREE 17 226,107 233,409
Debt instruments at amortised cost R SERRANSBRER TR 18 - 478
Tax recoverable EEEEE] 3,930 3,063
Short term bank deposits % ERIRITIF 3K 20 - 52,621
Bank balances and cash IRTTAERR IR ® 20 44,634 61,362
437,493 431,655
Current liabilities REBARE
Trade and bills payables B SN FIE R ENEE 21 105,339 72,174
Other payables and accrued charges EM IR ERTER 22 106,049 124,192
Contract liabilities aHaE 17 14,993 59,122
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 2,322 582
Provision for onerous contracts EEE HRE 25 1,613 6,197
Bank borrowings RITIEK 26 35,000 -
265,316 262,267
Net current assets REEEFE 172,177 169,388
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 230,132 244,473
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R
As at 3| March 2024

RZZE-_WMFE=A=+—H

As at 31 March

R=B=+—8
2024 2023
—EIEF —TC=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
rs FHT FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other provision Hb B 25 954 308
Lease liabilities HERE 23 272 48
1,226 356
Net assets EERE 228,906 244,117
Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital &N 27 4,000 4,000
Reserves G 224,906 240,117
Equity attributable to owners AAREE AE LR
of the Company 228,906 244,117

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to |34 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2024 and are signed

on its behalf by:

FEREIMENEEMBRRN_-F
THERAtTEREEEESERHERK
BT YA TIEERRESSRE

Yu Cheung Choy

AR
DIRECTOR

EF

Lau Man Ching
XE
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

5 A Jill 3L s
REERREBR
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z-MF=A=+—-HILFE

in Equity

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
Hitr
[LEN R EE e REER )
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TAT TAT
At | April 2022 RZZ__NH—H 4,000 83223 5058 180,838 273,119
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FRIEE &
for the year THAXAHE - - - (11,002) (11,002)
Dividends recognised as distribution BRRDRARE
(Note 12) (BtaE 12) - - - (18,000) (18,000)
At3I March 2023 RZFZ=F
=R=1+—H 4,000 83223 5058 151,836 244117
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FREE K
for the year FEATERE - - = (15211 (15211
At 3| March 2024 R=ZZNE
& =g 4,000 83223 5058 136,625 228906

Note: Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of (i) reserve arising from the group reorganisation,

which mainly comprises issue of shares by Triumph Legend Ltd (“Triumph Legend”) to acquire

equity interests in Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK") and issue of shares by

the Company to acquire equity interests in Triumph Legend and Blissful Choice Limited (“‘Blissful
Choice"); and (ii) HK$4,800,000 upon the waiver of amounts due to directors and credited as

deemed contributions from shareholders.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=RA=1T—-HLHEE

2024 2023
—EIEF —TC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEY
Loss before taxation bR ATEE (17,341) (14,009)
Adjustments for: MATZIEFAE
Depreciation of property and equipment MERZETE 1,290 1,396
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 2,230 2,111
Net impairment loss recognised on trade EHRKFIBRENEE
receivables and contract assets MR R R E R E 1,321 1,715
Impairment loss recognised on other H h FE W IR R R B 18
receivables 1,782 -
Impairment loss recognised on debt YR THRC AN B BREY
instruments at amortised cost B T AmRRMERER 18 47
Fair value loss on financial assets BERATHEFABRNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss N EEBE 4,536 4215
Bank interest income RITF B A (865) (1,748)
Interest income on rental deposits HERSF WA (34) (14)
Interest income from debt instruments at KB REHK AT BRER A
amortised cost EORYIISNY N (304) (316)
Dividend income from insurance policy REREHREMA (58) (57)
Dividend income from financial assets REBRA T ER ABZED
at fair value through profit or loss TREENRIMA (1,393) (1,984)
Finance costs BB 2,217 49
Operating cash flows before movements HEACHBNKERERE
in working capital (6,501) (8,595)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 W IEIE N (79,581) (33,526)
Increase in other receivables, HEWFIE - ek
deposits and prepayments TERTRIEIE N (6,333) (3,056)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BREERD (GM) 6,935 (98,585)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 PN 308 K FE N R IR AN 33,165 18,233
(Decrease) increase in other payables and HAb e B R ERTE A ()&
accrued charges (18,143) 29,137
Decrease in contract liabilities BREERD (44,129) (5,887)
Decrease in provision for onerous contracts B8 & KV ER A (4,584) (15,021)
Increase (decrease) in other provision HAb B AE O d) 646 (213)
Cash used in operations KRR S (118,525) (117,513)
Income tax paid EAPTSH (867) -
Net cash used in operating activities RETBFAREFRE (119,392) (117513)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ILZE
mEEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

For the year ended 31| March
BE=RA=1T—-HLHEE

2024 2023
—ECmEF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Bank interest income received B ERTTH B U A 1,727 836
Interest income received from debt KB R HN AT BRAER T A
instruments at amortised cost Y E WH B A 304 304
Dividend received from financial assets REZE QP EFAEZD
at fair value through profit or loss TREENDKRE 1,602 1,985
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised BEREHAARTIBRNERTA
cost - (2,333)
Redemption of debt instruments at B B SHA ARSI BREVE IS T A
amortised cost 218 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATESABRNEREE
through profit or loss (214) (4,000)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERATFESABENEHEE
through profit or loss 15918 6,100
Purchase of property and equipment BEMELHRE (316) (527)
Placement of short term bank deposits FERBRRITER - (112,621)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits RHAE HRIRTT K 52,621 60,000
Rental deposit refund received EEEERSER - 58
Payment for rental deposits MEZRE K (35) (24)
Net cash from (used in) investing REZBRE (FTA) REFHE
activities 71,825 (50,222)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Dividends paid EARE - (18,000)
Interest paid EAF S (2,217) (49)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEBERE (1,944) (2,395)
New bank borrowings raised FEIRITER 40,000 -
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITRE (5,000) -
Net cash from (used in) financing REEBRE (FTA) REFHE
activities 30,839 (20,444)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents HRERREZEYRLD FHE (16,728) (188,179)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FRELEASFED
the year 61,362 249,541
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERIBERREEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BIRITHEBR LR 44,634 61362
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

SH Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
and registered as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Act (as revised)
of the Cayman Islands on 9 May 2016. The addresses of the
Company'’s registered office and the principal place of business
in Hong Kong are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY[-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 603-606,
6/F., Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Prosperously Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend™), which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and wholly owned
by Mr.Yu Cheung Choy (“MrYu"), who is also the chairman of the board
(the “Board”) of directors and executive director of the Company. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 3 January
2017.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group's annual periods beginning on | April 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Model
Rules

Amendments to HKAS | and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS | and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. HKAS | “Presentation of Financial Statements” is amended to
replace all instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included in
an entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies
the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and to
judge whether information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not vet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 2

2

3

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture!

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilties as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)*

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Supplier Finance Arrangements®

Lack of Exchangeability®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2025

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for
the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group's accounting policies relating to contracts
with customers is provided in notes 5 and |7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Leases

The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

C any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are
unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as "right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). The recoverable amount of property and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Deposits in life insurance policies

Deposits in life insurance policies are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost adjusted for interest income and service
charges, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Contd)

()

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. For
financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont'd)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other loss"” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL’) model on financial assets (including trade receivables, debt
instruments at amortised cost, other receivables and deposits, short
term bank deposits and bank balances) and contract assets which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
[2-month ECL (*12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within |2 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the impairment loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

()

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(0) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

(iv)

\)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner: Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Contd)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables and contract assets
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and accrued charges and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme") as
defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For long-service payment (“LSP") obligation, the Group accounts for
the employer MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS
19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis. The estimated amount of future
benefit is determined after deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

90

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash presented on the consolidated statement of
financial position and the consolidated statement of cash flows include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits,
excluding bank balances that are subject to regulatory restrictions
that result in such balances no longer meeting the definition of
cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally with
original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Contd)

Material accounting policy information (Contd)
Provisions (Contd)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
each reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. The unavoidable costs under
a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is
the lower of the net cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it.

When assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, the Group
includes costs that relate directly to the contract, consisting of both the
incremental costs (e.g. direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs (e.g. an allocation of project overhead costs) that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts.

Government grants

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other income”.
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4.

92

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets within the next financial year

Engineering service contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for each
engineering service contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted
engineering service costs are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by the major subcontractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the management.
In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such significant
estimate may have impact on the profit or loss recognised in each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)
Engineering service contracts (Contd)

Recognised amounts of engineering service contract revenue and related
receivables reflect the management's best estimate of each contract’s
outcome and stage of completion, which are determined on the basis of
a number of estimates. This includes the assessment of the profitability
of on-going engineering service contracts. For more complex contracts
in particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to
significant estimation uncertainty. Notwithstanding that the management
frequently reviews and revises the estimates of both the estimated
revenue and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in estimates
or the actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts of contract assets/
liabilities with the corresponding adjustments to future revenue and/or
direct costs.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recognised
contract revenue and contract costs amounted to HK$876,177,000
and HK$859,888,000 respectively (2023: HK$954,255,000 and
HK$945,599,000 respectively).

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets

ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed individually.
The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment
history and/or past due status of the respective customers. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the financial instruments and contract assets and are adjusted for
forward-looking information. The loss allowance amount of the credit-
impaired trade receivables and contract assets is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected future
credit losses.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

As at 3| March 2024, the trade receivables and contract assets
amounting to HK$ 145,777,000 and HK$226,107,000 respectively (2023:
HK$67,150,000 and HK$233,409,000 respectively).
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4.

94

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets (Contd)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL, the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 31, |5 and 17, respectively.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received or receivable
arising from the engineering service contracts of the Group from external
customers. The Group's revenue was solely derived from electrical and
mechanical engineering (“E&M engineering”) services with the focus on
the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and
air-conditioning system (“MVAC system") and low voltage electrical
system in Hong Kong during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.
Such services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5. WaEROHER(E)

Revenue (Contd) Wz (&)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated RERERR  NEEEHGE
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an RSER(BREEF AR
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully RENEFTREXIIRS) - UE
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the ERMRBERRFERBERIA
changes in circumstances during the reporting period. RRBERRNZFBFTANEL -

(i) Disaggregation of revenue ) Weas 77248

For the year ended 31| March
BE=-A=t—-HLEE

2024 2023
—B-IEF —E-=HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Type of services ART&XERY
— Supply, installation and —HE TER
maintenance of MVAC system BIERPCRREZE AR 597,052 740617
— Supply, installation and — HE - ZREREBERE
maintenance of low voltage BREM
electrical system 279,125 213,638
876,177 954,255
The revenue recognised for the years ended 31 March 2024 and HE_T_MER_FT
2023 was mainly from private sector projects. —=HF=ZA=+—RHI*F

EHERH W T ER BT

Z18A -
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5.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Revenue (Contd)

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation
for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March
2024 amounting to approximately HK$883,543,000 (2023:
HK$1,413,992,000). Based on the information available to the
Group at the end of the reporting period, management expects
that the remaining performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue during the years ending 31 March 2025 to 2027 (2023:
31 March 2024 to 2026).

Segment information

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker, review the overall results and financial position of the Group as
a whole. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and only entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographical
information are presented.

Geographical information

The Group'’s revenue are all derived from Hong Kong based on the
location of services delivered and the Group's property and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounting to HK$ 19,737,000 as at 3| March 2024
(2023: HK$18,960,000) are all located in Hong Kong by physical location
of assets.
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For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5. WaEROHER(E)
Information about major customers FREXEEFHNER
Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 0% or more of RERIR BG4 R B W45 10%
the Group's total revenue during the years is as follows: FA LR EPH LT -
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLFE
2024 2023
—E-IF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Customer A ZPEA 224,458 119,794
Customer B EFEB 145,750 169,980
Customer C EFC 116242  N/ATEA*
Customer D EFD N/A 38 F * 213,482
Customer E ®PE N/A i A * 105,699
& Revenue from the relevant customers was less than 10% of the Group's total revenue for & REREE - REBFRAEPHKEE
the respective period. RAEE IR AREER 10%
DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 6. EEkEEME
() Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ESRESTHRABHME
During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, the RBEE_T_HNFR_-ZF
emoluments paid or payable by the entities now comprising the T=F=ZA=+—HLt#F
Group to the directors and chief executive of the Company were B AEBEHERKETER
as follows: MARREEFRFEFETH
ABEN SN B2 a0
T
Salaries Retirement
and benefit
Directors’ other Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
Y BHET )
E=Re  HMER BRRA SEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER FER FER TR
For the year ended BE-ZE-NF
31 March 2024 =R=t-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) A At (MEE) - 2,808 17 18 2,943
Lau Man Ching (notes i and ii) 2130 (M5t Riii) - 2,348 147 18 2513
Yu Ho Chi (note i) aas (Mati) - 1,747 109 18 1,874
Independent BYKHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam (note i) AR (et 156 - - - 156
Law Man Wah (note i) BCE (M) 156 - - - 156
Lee Wing Kee (note i) FoxE (M) 156 - - - 156
468 6,903 73 54 7,798
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

6.

98

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 6. HEEREEME(Z)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd) (@) EERESTHRABNRE
(&)
Salaries Retirement
and benefit
Directors' other  Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
| L RiFE
EEMe  HMEN  BEEAL SEHER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TAET TERT TET
For the year ended BE-2-=F%
31 March 2023 =ZA=t-RL%E
Executive Directors PBTES
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) At (Fati) - 2,700 450 18 3168
Lau Man Ching (notes i and iii) 230 (&L Riii) - 2258 377 18 2,653
Yu Ho Chi (note i) AER (i) - 1,680 252 18 1950
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
LamYim Nam (note i) A (BT i) 156 - - - 156
Law Man Wah (note i) 7 (Fatii) 156 - - - 156
Lee Wing Kee (note i) ok E (FtaTi) 156 4 — - 156
468 6,638 1,079 54 8239
Notes: Bt5E
(@) The emoluments of Mr.Yu, Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”), who is the chief 0 LIXRTERL - §”7¥%%
executive officer and executive director of the Company, and Mr.Yu Ho Chi E(r%ﬂf’ﬁ%} ' $QEEE§
shown above were for their services in connection with the management of %@ﬁ&iﬂf§/$) %i:m B
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries undertaking. REOMSBEFHRERR
NCIDSEA ) NSRS aAip
RGBS -
(ii) The emoluments of independent non-executive directors shown above were (i) %Y}fﬁjﬁ%ﬁ#i}lﬁ%%ﬂ@
for their services as directors of the Company. M SRSREARAES
e -
(iif) Mr. Lau is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his remuneration (i) BIRETRARFTHAR

disclosed above included these services rendered by him as chief executive

officer.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office. No directors have waived any

remuneration during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 6.

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2023: three)
directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in (a) above for the year ended 31 March 2024. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2023: two) individuals for the
year ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

EEkEEME (&)

(b)

EEME
hAEBREHFATBEEHZE
—E-_NFE=A=1+—H
HEFEEMETA LX)
ERRNARR ZRES (=
T_=F:=F) HEZ
E-_WNE=Z/A=+—HIt
FE - HHBEMZ(ZTEZ=
F:RB) ATHEIE 0
R &

For the year ended 3| March
HE=A=t—-HLFE

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e hEAMAMEF 3,331 3,442
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R R1E FIEH I TR 36 36
3,367 3,478

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RENBMES T FLATEE :

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1+—-HLEE

2024 2023

—ENF —E-=4F

Number of individuals

BEAR

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

1,000,001 7B ITZE 1,500,000 77T
1,500,001 7 7T Z 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 77T % 2,500,000 78 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

REE-_Z_NHFEER=Z
—T=F=HA=1+—HItE
B AEETWERRAR
BEALTINMNE R
G RPN HIPNZ NS
B 1& 1) 2Z B 2k 1 2 B B

f& -
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS 7. Hit W AR HE S8
For the year ended 31| March
BE=A=1+—HLEFE
2024 2023
—EME - S oS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
Other income: Hablg A -
Bank interest income RITHBULA 865 | 748
Interest income from debt instruments at KB R SER AN BR A &R T A
amortised cost B B UL A 304 316
Dividend income from insurance policy KB RERREWA 58 57
Dividend income from financial assets REZ AT ETAEBEN
at FVTPL ERIEERRBIA 1,393 1,984
Government grants (note) BB (B ) 177 6518
Sundry income MIEA 674 279
3,471 10,902
Other loss: Hibgsia -
Fair value loss on financial assets at BATEF ARG SREE
FVTPL NYEEE (4,536) (4215)
Note: MI3E -

During the year ended 3| March 2023, the government grants mainly represented the government

grants from the Employment Support Scheme launched by the Hong Kong Government of

HK$6,202,000.

8. FINANCE COSTS

HE-_Z-_=F=-A=+—ALFE  BF#
BEEEBBHRNHELARRE]FETH

BRI 8 6,202,000 % T

BE A

For the year ended 3| March

BE=A=+—HLEE
2024 2023
—E-mE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT THET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFE 2,010 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 207 49
2,217 49
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE-Z-NF=A=+—AHLFE
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRELAIE 1B

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1+-HLEE

2024 2023
—ENE B
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss before taxation has been arrived at BRIGATE IR IA TR IE
after charging: ER
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z S8BT 1,840 1,878
Depreciation of property and equipment MERZETE 1,290 1,396
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,230 2,111
Directors’ emoluments (note 6) EEME (HsEe6) 7,798 8,239
Other staff costs: HtBTAHA :
Salaries and other benefits Fre REMEN 95,381 92,109
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRERET B 3272 3,195
Total staff costs BIKAEEE 106,451 103,543
10.  INCOMETAX CREDIT 10. FrSHER
For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=+—HLEE
2024 2023
—EC-ME —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EBENEHR
Current tax BNEATTE
Over-provision in prior years NEFE B - 19
Deferred taxation (note 24) RIERIA (P T 24) 2,130 2,988
2,130 3,007
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

10.

102 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2023-24

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Contd) 0. FRigBiER (&)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong Profits Tax, RIEF B 1T TS B R AR

the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be fl - EEREEERNE2008%E

taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. Toa A 2 8.25% M T REFL - T

The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax 78 38 200 & & 7T 69 % F 1 H2 16.5%

rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. MR- - TREZNETHM
ARHI B AR B SR B E B8 208 A A
IR 16.5% 2 Bl — TR EH -

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been recognised in the HRARERZMEFEHEE

consolidated financial statements as the Group did not generate any ERELTMAERTEN - B

assessable profit in Hong Kong for both years. BREEUBRRERAETBEME
TR -

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before FA-FAEHEREEEERR

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other H 2 T WA SR B BR B A B 1R

comprehensive income as follows: RRAATE -

For the year ended 31| March
BE=ZA=t+—-HLEE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FAT

Loss before taxation BRI RTIEE (17,341) (14,009)

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5%
Tax effect of income not taxable for

BEBMNERMIEE 165%5TE/
HIE 2,861 2311
BERBRMA DTG E

tax purpose 427 1,760
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PRI A G E

tax purpose (992) (871)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEBENOT B E (166) (212)
Over-provision in prior years AT E R - 19
Income tax credit for the year FAMENESR 2,130 3,007




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LOSS PER SHARE I

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the following data:

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

BRER
FEREABEMNGFEIERAT
g -

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1-HLFE

2024 2023
—E-mE —ETCo=F
Loss for the purpose of calculating STEBRENEEMAN
basic loss per share: BA
Loss for the year attributable to RRAEE AEIEFERER
owners of the Company (HK$'000) (F#T) (15,211) (11,002)
Number of shares: RIHEA -
Number of ordinary shares A EERERNEE Y
for the purpose of calculating basic loss JElbEgE
per share 400,000,000 400,000,000

No diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023
was presented as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share in issue
for both years.

DIVIDENDS 12.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no dividend was declared or paid
to the shareholders of the Company. The Board did not propose any final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, a final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2022 of HKI.0 cent per ordinary share (HK$4.0
million in aggregate) and a special interim dividend of HK3.5 cents per
ordinary share (HK$14.0 million in aggregate) were declared and paid to
the shareholders of the Company.

HREE ST -_NMER T - =
FZAZ+—BHULFETED#
TEBEE#ELBER  BCREZT
BEALEsTle: H-155iE 0

BRE
BHE-_Z-_WF=ZA=+—H1t
FE BERARFRREIRK
KTTIRE - EFETERMEBE
—E_NFE=A=+—HItFE
IRHERIAREARR S, ©

RBEE-_ZE-_==A=+—8”
HEE  BERAQRAKRESTRRL
ENEE—S-_—&F#=H=+—
HIEFERRPR BT E AR
LOFBAL (A& 40088 T) RERI
FHIRR B SRR L BAR3SBI(E
H1,400887T) °
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

13.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13.  YIERRE
Leasehold Computer
land and Leasehold Furniture and office
buildings improvements  and fixtures equipment Total
HELH BAR ElK
kgF HEHE EEHE MWARE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRT TR TR TR TR

CoST R

At | April 2022 RZZE-—FINA—H 24,088 2,498 1,520 5,155 33261
Additions NE = 313 287 64 664
At 31 March 2023 RZB-=F=A=+—H 24,088 2811 | 807 5219 33925
Additions NE = = 12 304 316
At 31 March 2024 R-E-_m&E=A=+-H 24,088 2811 1,819 5,523 3424
ACCUMULATED 2 E

DEPRECIATION

At | April 2022 R-E_—%A—H 6,286 2,387 1393 4,102 14,168
Provided for the year FRRE 705 13 122 456 1396
At 31 March 2023 R-Z-_=#=A=+—H 6991 2,500 1515 4558 15,564
Provided for the year FRERE 705 98 93 394 1290
At 31 March 2024 R-E-_m&E=H=+-A 7,696 2,598 1,608 4952 16,854

CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE

At 31 March 2024 R-B-ME=A=1+-AH 16,392 213 211 571 17,387

At 31 March 2023 RZB_=f=A=1-H 17,097 311 92 661 18361

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a FmERRBEARAERFELE

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: AT BIFERNEITE -

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease of MELHRET NEHIZ4FER
34 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of HEEE M EAEk 5 F
the lease or 5 years (A H

HEE)A
Furniture and fixtures 20% FEEAKEERE 20%
Computer and office equipment 20% B RPFAZME 20%
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e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024

HE-T-_NEF=A=+—RHIFE
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FEHEEE
Leased properties
BYE
HK$000
TAET
Carrying amount BREE
As at 31 March 2024 R-Z-mE=A=+-—H 2,350
As at 31 March 2023 RZE-_=F=A= =] 599
Depreciation e
For the year ended BE-Z-_NE=A=+—HLEE
31 March 2024 2,230
For the year ended HE-T-=F=A=1+—HIHFE
31 March 2023 2,111
For the year ended 3| March
BE=ZA=1T—-HLHFE
2024 2023
“EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHEE AR - 42
Total cash outflow for leases HER ML 25 2,151 2,486
Additions/modification to right-of-use assets NEEREREEE 3,981 276

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has no outstanding short-
term lease commitments.

For both years, the Group leases various office premises and workshops
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of | to
2 years (2023: | to 2 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$2,594,000 (2023: HK$630,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$2,350,000 (2023:
HK$599,000) as at 31 March 2024.The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

R-T-—mMER T -_=4F=H
=t—B AEEVELSHHES
HIE o

AEERMEFERERAEF
NMITGAG %R - HEEHW
BEHRAE I Z2F (T =4
| £24F) - HEEFIRERIFRE
HET ETPESHEEZNT
B & - BBE B R
TR RSHEARR A - AEBEERES
HMEEIFETE A L08R H TT
HIEARR o

TSR IR R H

o R=ZZFE-_WFE=A=1+—
B - i 46 B8 £ A # & &= 2,350,000
BIL (T = =4 : 599,000/87T)
BREEAE 2594008 L( ==
T =4 : 63000078 7T) ° BrHAEA
BEMNHEEENEREDRIN
FAE e I & i pn T 225 - A
EEETSREGRER -
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

I5. TRADE RECEIVABLES 5. EZEWKIE
As at 3| March
N=A=+—H
2024 2023
—EF —Eo=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT
Trade receivables B 5 W FOR 147,289 67,708
Less: Impairment loss allowance B REEEEE (1,512) (558)
145,777 67,150

As at | April 2022, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to HK$34,019,000.

The Group grants credit terms of 30 days to its customers from the date
of invoices on progress billings of contract works. An aged analysis of the
trade receivables net of impairment loss allowance presented based on
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

R-ZZTE-_—_FMWMA—H" kg
BEEAHMESZEWAREAL
34,019,000 7 JT, ©

AEEEANTIREEFAEER
BHEEEmAE R PR H30KMNER
He REFEPRERNZREH
2 5IE 5 W IA (R R E &
BREE) RO

As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2024 2023
—EDNmEF —Eo=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
0-30 days 0E30K 136,557 30,226
31-60 days 31 E60K 5,544 28,694
61-90 days 61 90K 2,671 4,260
Over 90 days FEpE R0 1,005 3970
145,777 67,150
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e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd) I5. BEZERHKEGE)
As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group's trade receivables balance RZE_NMFEF=A=+—H K
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$9,220,000 (2023: SEBSEKFIBEHRBEREA
HK$36,924,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the #{E92200008 T(ZT =4 :
past due balances, HK$ 1,005,000 (2023: HK$3,970,000) has been past 36,924,000 7% 7T ) B FE W AR K » 3%
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as these balances ERFNMEBHE A - B
are either from debtors with long term business relationship or with #EERP - 10050008 L (ZE ==
expected subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any collateral £ : 3,970,000 7T ) BY I B2 48
over these balances. ORZKIA B RWARIEEL - T)
HRZEEHRKE ERBREE
FRHBEBANTEREREEN - K
SEMERZSERTAEME
Y o
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in note BB S REBCRIBREH R
31, BRI 3I
OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS le. HABWKE RERBENRE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2024 2023
—E-IF —TC=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Rental and other deposits HERHMIRE 840 833
Deposits in life insurance policies (note) SharERe () 1,934 1,876
Deposits paid for acquisition of property and ~ WEEYIZE REENE TR
equipment 279 279
Other receivables from subcontractors IR FGE P R H M FE W IR 10,628 1,731
Other receivables H b pE U kIR 350 1318
Prepayments and others TERTRRIE R E A 5,933 10,393
Total At 19,964 16,430
Presented as non-current assets 2IRIERBEE 2919 2,858
Presented as current assets 2 RREBEE 17,045 13,572
Total At 19,964 16,430

Note:  The amount represented the deposits placed with an insurance company for the

life insurance policies of two directors of the Company. The Group can, at any time,

receive cash back based on the cash value of the policies (“Cash Value”) at the date of

withdrawal, which is equal to the sum of tabular cash value shown in the relevant policy

schedules with any dividend accumulations and the cash values of any paid-up additions,

less any indebtedness. The carrying amount of the life insurance policies approximates the

Cash Value of the insurance policies.

Mz . ZERERRAATMELEENSR
REMEFRNRRAAOFR - A%
B BE AR IR RAR IR SR ER A 2R £R
ERSEE(REE]) BEERER
E - IESNERR B RATRAIR
I3RS B EBTIA R RIERE K
ERIEREE0E RER RS EERER
B - SRRERAELRREREE
BfEE -
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

16.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Contd)

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and deposits are
set out in note 31.

HtEWRIE - RERAMK
(&)

ﬁ‘rﬂlﬁﬁﬂﬁl NIA MR e R ER (AR
BRI HIEE 3 -

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES BHEEREHNERE
As at 3| March
MR=A=+—AH
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiBT T
Contract assets EHEE 227,884 234,819
Less: Impairment loss allowance R EE R R (1,777) (1,410)
226,107 233,409
Contract liabilities EHBE 14,993 59,122

As at | April 2022, contract assets and contract liabilities amounted to
HK$ 136,144,000 and HK$65,009,000 respectively.

The Group has rights to considerations from customers for the provision
of E&M engineering services. Contract assets arise when the Group has
right to consideration for completion of E&M engineering services and
not vet billed under the relevant contracts, and their right is conditional
on factors other than passage of time. Any amount previously recognised
as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when such right
becomes unconditional other than the passage of time. Remaining rights
and performance obligations in a particular contract is accounted for and
presented on a net basis, as either a contract asset or a contract liability. If
the progress payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
input method, the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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REBBERRBRHEE TIRRE
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CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

The Group's engineering service contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the contract period once certain
specified milestones based on surveyors' assessment are reached.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the
monies withheld by customers of contract works recoverable after
the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, usually
being | to 2 years from the date of completion of respective E&M
engineering services projects. Normally the retention money will be
accumulated up to 5% or 10% of the contract value.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because the Group
expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set out in note
31

For the contract liabilities as at 31 March 2023, HK$53,074,000 were
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 3| March
2024.

For the contract liabilities as at | April 2022, HK$64,154,000 were
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 3| March
2023.

The decrease in contract assets in current year is resulted from the
decrease in the Group’s right to consideration for completion of E&M
engineering services but not vyet billed under the relevant contracts as at
31 March 2024.

The decrease in contract liabilities in current year is resulted from
recognition as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2024.

17.

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
HE-Z-MF=A=+—-HIFE

BHREERGHEE(E)
AEEH TIRRSG A HBEMR
R RERK-BEIETE
A EEFH AR EERR - AIF
RE KR EIR RPN o

RE S REERNRE - LIEH
e AOMREREmRR  RRE

MHEAENETRNER AR AS
METRERBEETKE =M
FIRRFPEMN K ERE
T REIE—RBERFESNE
ERI5% 3K 10% o

AEBBRSANEESEAR
B - Py AR B — 48
BRI R

BRBERER GBI E
) @

ﬂﬁ_i_—i A=+—H®W

EHBE 530740008 TREZ
_7_m$ A=+—HILFE
T,E\quz‘ E@ﬂ/b\ﬁ”&ﬁﬁ °

MR- -_—_FMHA—BHNEY
BfE 641540008 TREZ —-F
T=F=HA=+—HLFEER
PR AN o

AEREHNEERLTVHARAK
SEAERN_FT_NF=A
=t BREMBEEHE KA
HARFAZEZNEE TR
ERRAER D P ER

AEEANABERDTIHRRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

18.  DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

18.

BREBERAFIRNEFETA

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8H
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Investment in listed bonds with fixed interest — FAEEFFIZK 1.00% & 7.25% (=
rate ranging from 1.00% to 7.25% T =F 1 425% 2 7.95%) R E|
(2023:4.25% to 7.95%) per annum and HEHA—ZE-_RFN\AE=Z
maturity date ranging from August 2025 to Z—FNA(ZE=F: =2
September 2032 (2023: October 2023 to Z=F+AE=ZFT=_RFN\A)
August 2025) B EmEHRE 2,475 2811
Investment in listed perpetual capital R EEF B 5.25% &) _E k&
securities with fixed interest of 5.25% (note) B AEHFAIIZE (FisE) 4,190 4,190
6,665 7,001
Analysed as: DR
Current E - 478
Non-current FERED 6,665 6,523
6,665 7,001
Note:  There is no maturity of the securities and the payments of distribution can be deferred at MisE : ZEFHFBEDNEL - MO IR KA
the discretion of the issuer; and there is no limit as to the number of times of deferral of BETARNBREELE - A5 IKE

distribution. Any distribution so deferred shall bear interest as if it constituted the principal
of the securities. The perpetual capital securities are callable by issuer. Because the
contractual cash flows of listed perpetual capital securities represent solely the payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, the investment in listed

perpetual capital securities is measured at amortised cost.

Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments at amortised cost
are set out in note 31.
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20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 9. BRAFEFTABENEHEE
LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: BRER AT EFABRIGENS
BMEE -
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2024 2023
—2opE —B_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT TET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE ETTHRARZ 6,758 18,021
Unlisted funds in overseas RBINIR EES 13,193 22,170
19,951 40,191
SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 20, FEHRTERURRTESRRE
CASH %
As at 31 March 2023, short term bank deposits represented bank MRZE_=%F=R1 E‘f'_ SN )
deposits carrying fixed interest rate from 2.00% to 4.00% per annum with HASR 1T 17 SRAEHR B ' F M) % 2.00%
an original maturity between three months and twelve months. £ 4.00% §‘|'E'\HJ§7§|J,H$@ AAE={EH
E+_EABRITER °
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%&fﬁﬁﬁﬁf?%ﬁﬁﬁ
deposits carry at variable interest rates with an original maturity of three B e RRITE K ORF B R5
months or less. As at 31 March 2024, the variable interest rates ranged B REHBAS=EAZLNAT)
from 0.88% to 4.23% (2023: 0.13% to 4.55%) per annum. R_ZE_WMFE=A=+—8 "%

EFERRNF088% E 4.23% (=&
T 0.13%E455%) ©

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21, EZERNRERECRE
The credit period on purchases and subcontracting of contract work MEERE R D BE K T EREH
services ranges from 30 to 60 days generally. The following is an aged ERBBRENT0EOK - AT
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date and bills RNERERARERERHHZE
payables presented based on the date of issuance of the bills at the end I E FEMNRIBERIERERET
of each reporting period: HEAZ DM EN RBERE H AT
As at 31 March
R=A=+—8
2024 2023
—E_mE —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THET
Trade payables: BH5RENPIA
0-30 days 02 30K 32,600 32,585
31-60 days 31 260K 54,185 39,434
61-90 days 6l \:%907? 15,541 =
Over 90 days FBiB 90K 418 155
102,744 72,174
Bills payables: ANES
0-30 days 0&30K 2,595 =
105,339 72,174
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

22.  OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 22. HMENREBERESER
As at 3| March
R=A=+—8
2024 2023
—EomE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Accrued staff costs FEEtE TRk 10,857 10,864
Accrued contract costs FEEHA HIRK AN 32,231 48,975
Other accrued charges Hih et & A 1,776 2,214
Retention payables (note) EHRES (FFE) 61,185 62,139
106,049 124,192
Note: Retention payables to subcontractors of contract works are interest-free and payable by Mzt : EARERENSHIERESAR
the Group after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in B ARAEEREEAOREST
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from | to 2 years PR SRR AR B & 40 IR E IR X
from the completion date of the respective engineering service contracts. - BAEBE IR & 4 7e R B #iAE
ST I E2FE -
23.  LEASE LIABILITIES 3. H#HEAR
As at 3| March
R=A=+—8
2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEAE :
Within one year —FR 2,322 582
Within a period of more than one year but —F LA LB NEBBMRE
not exceeding two years 272 48
2,594 630
Less: Amount due for settlement with B mBAREE TR
[2 months shown 1218 A | HpE S & 58
under current liabilities (2,322) (582)
Amount due for settlement after |2 months EMBERE TR 2EAR
shown under non-current liabilities FHfEfT 258 272 48

ERANHE & ErE S G E
NF493%E738%( —_FE =4 :
241% & 493%) o

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range from
4.93% to 7.38% (2023:2.41% to 4.93%).
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24.

The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years.

Accelerated
accounting ECL
depreciation provision

REEE
MEEHIE  ERRE
HK$000  HK$000

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

ST BB
THBRAEE RIAL FENHE
R HEEE (8 E) R0
28 -

Provision for

onerous
contracts Tax losses Total
BREANRE HEEE st

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER FER FER ThR
At | April 2022 RZZZZFWNA—A 3 41 3,501 - 3,565
Credit(charge) to profit or loss &t A (1% B ) 82 (FizE 10)

(note 10) 32 283 (2478) 5151 2988
At | April 2023 RZEZ=FMA—H 55 324 1023 5151 6,553
Credit(charge) to profit orloss &t A (kB ) 182 (i3 10)

(note 10) 7 169 (757) 2711 2,130
At 31 March 2024 R-B_MWF=A=+—H 62 493 266 7862 8,683

At 31 March 2024, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$60,014,000 (2023: HK$42,577,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$47,653,000 (2023: HK$31,224,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
approximately HK$12,361,000 (2023: HK$11,353,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All unrecognised tax losses are
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RZE-_NMFE=ZA=+—8 "
AEBEEBEARADAREBFELY
600140008 JL( = T = = F:
42,577,000 7T ) AT A EH 35 R 2R
w Al o B % E E 1 447,653,000
BT (ZF Z =4 : 31224000/
TL)BREERIBEEE - AR
AIBRI B EFARE - Bt
LR T 4123610008 (=&
Z =4 : 11,353,000/ 7T ) HERIE
ERBEE - TEABERHIES
B9 5 r] ER B E A E IS o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

25.

26.

PROVISION FOR ONEROUS CONTRACTS AND OTHER
PROVISION

The provision for onerous contracts relates to certain contracts with
customers under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation
exceed the economic benefits to be received due to anticipated increase
in certain production costs. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
there are additions of HK$53,577,000 and utilisation of HK$58,161,000
provision for onerous contracts.

The Group provides for the probable future long service payments
expected to be made to employees under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The provision represents the management’s best estimate of
probable future payments which have been earned by the employees
from their services to the group entities up to the end of each reporting
period. During the year ended 31 March 2024, there is addition of
HK$646,000 other provision for long-services payments.

BANK BORROWINGS

25.

26.

BREAABBERAEMRE

EEANBERE THEFFI L
ZERNHER ERREETEERK
ATEEIE B HRABEITEE MR
A 3 TR & BX AN R T TR AR AR /Y
KEMNm BHE_T _NF=
A=1T—HIEFE BEGH
B 5 18 053,577,000 7T N 8 A
58,161,000/ 7T °

AEBE L FRMR BT L RIB G
A& B {19 7] BE R 2R R HI AR 7%
SEHREE BBEREEERS
HREEEHNEECHEHRT
& BB e RS P BRER AT B AR 2R
MRORERBGT - BE_FT N
FZA=t—BLFE KR
& E AR B IN 646,000 87T

RITRER
As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-lEF —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Bank loans — unsecured RITRER - |EH 35,000 =
The bank loans that contain a repayment on HEEERERERORBAGBET
demand clause (shown under current HI7R) B ZER LA T R EE A9 IR
liabilities) but repayable as follows: TER
Within one year —FR 35,000 -

All the bank borrowings as at 3| March 2024 are variable-rate borrowings
carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR").

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group's borrowings is 6.68% to 7.53% per annum
as at 31 March 2024.
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27.
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e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Contd) 26. SRITER(E)
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had a facility agreement RZEBE_NER-_ZF_=F=
entered into with a bank with certain obligations of Mr.Yu and Mr. Lau =+T—RB AEEE—HE-XK
pursuant to such facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr Yu RITAI R E ok - WRERRE
and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the EmEAEBEmAEREILENE
Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr.Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as TERHEET BEET: ()ak
the chairman or director of the Company. EREEEAEEENRERR
TERARRBH AR : R (i) &
ST RE S EBNEEARRAID
ITRAEF -
SHARE CAPITAL 27. [N
Details of share capital of the Company are as follows: RATHRAFFOT -
Amount
Number -]
of shares HK$ HK$°000
R & B BT TR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREMBO BT L AR
Authorised: EE
At | April 2022, 31 March 2023 RZE__FMA—H -
and 2024 TR CFRIFIMEEF
=A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREBE XM :
At | April 2022, 31 March 2023 R-B-—#mA—F -
and 2024 “E-HFR-TONF
=—A=+—H 400,000,000 4,000,000 4,000

There was no movement in the Company's share capital during both
years.

AR B R fE AR 2 B AN B A AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-WMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

28.

29.

30.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 28. EBEEEH
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023 the Group pledged the following assets R-TE_MNER_ZT_=F=H
to secure the certain banking facilities including performance guarantees =+t—B AEEHHFUTEE
issued by a bank. NARETRITHE (BE—HRT
BHMBARE ) EHER o
The carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as follows: EHEMEERMENT
As at 31 March
R=B=+—8
2024 2023
i 1S =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRET TAT
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRIEF 16,392 17,097
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BBAXRZ
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial @E@ﬁé\ﬂﬁf\%i&%ﬁ@i@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
statements, the Group does not have any material related party BEN NEBERMEFELE
transactions for both years. ERIEARBE RS o
Compensation to key management personnel FTEEE ASHNHM
Compensation to key management personnel of the Group which REBFEEBEAB(AAXRAE
represent the directors of the Company is set out in note 6(a). =) F BT 6(a) ©
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. EBEXmEREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity of the Group,
comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly
taking into account the cost of capital and the risk associated with
the capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
issuance of new shares and raising new borrowings or the repayment of
the existing borrowings.
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For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. £@MIA
Categories of financial instruments SRITANER
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2024 2023
—EBoIEF —E-=HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATVEFABENEHEE 19,951 40,191
Financial assets at amortised cost BB AT RN SR E E 210,828 193,892
Financial liabilities sRasE
Amortised cost b I 243,477 192,555

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at amortised cost, trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, short term bank deposits, bank balances, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accrued charges, lease liabilities and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The group entities have financial assets denominated in currencies
other than their respective functional currencies. Consequently,
the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of functional
currencies relative to other currencies may change in a manner
that has an adverse effect on the value of the position of the
Group’s assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The exposure primarily arises from the investments in listed bond,
unlisted funds in overseas and bank balances denominated in
United States dollars (“US$").

BBEBREREEEREE
AEBENTMIABRERAFE
AAABENEREE  WEHK
RIEMEK TR - EHEKK
B HRYSRIENRE - B8
RITER > VRITER - BEHEMN
AN BN R - H AR R
MEETER  HERENMRITE
e BRZFERITANFRR
EMERE - AREZSERITE
) JEL B % 2R ] 3R B8 5% 5 [ e ) IR
RENTX - EREEENMEE
% 5 B B DA R % B B AL 1T 8
EHEE

5 E R

0} B E R
SEERESUSEE
BB LN EEHESNS
BEE - At AKEE
R EELEMER. 2

R AT HARE
oM HE R B

EANZERER

ZERBREZRBZET
(TETDEHENR ETE
o BINELEMES MR
TTHREEBIIRE -
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31

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

31

$RTE(E)
MEEMREEEEREE(EZ)

Market risk (Cont'd) 5 E S (&)
0) Currency risk (Cont'd) 0) SRR (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REBINEHEEREE
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting period REEROBREELNT
are as follows:
As at 31 March
R=B=+—8H
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRExT TET
Us$ e 15,979 23495
Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact in R EEXRGE - BT
exchange fluctuation between HK$ and US$ is considered to be B2 T 2 BE HOR B e B
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared. BREBERRTX  Bit
WARRBEEE DT
(iN) Interest rate risk (i) == [ B
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to the $$@ WIRE R EFNERE
variable-rate bank balances as disclosed in note 20 as at 3| March ZHEMFEENZ
2024 and 2023, and variable-rate bank borrowings as disclosed in THERZEZ=F=
note 26 as at 3| March 2024. The Group's fair value interest rate H _+ H #)% 8 1| & 3R
risk primarily relates to fixed-rate bond investments and lease T A BR DA R MY sE 26 1% BR
liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 as disclosed in notes |8 E/\:g_@ F=ZRA=+—
and 23 and short term bank deposits as at 31 March 2023 as BEZEAMERITERE
disclosed in note 20. e AREENRFENE

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate
its exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

Market risk (Contd)

(if)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rate risk on variable-rate bank borrowings.
The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate bank
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. No sensitivity analysis is provided
on bank balances as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank balances is minimal.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the sensitivity
analysis, which represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If the interest rate had
been 50 basis point higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2024 would increase/decrease by HK$ 146,000 (2023: nil).

31

HE—F

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
“TME=ZA=T-HLEFE

SRTHE(E)
MEEMREEEEREE(EZ)
B E R (&)

(if)

MR (&)

BRBE DT

N TNBRRE DT T IRIZ 8
RT3 & B
MERE ° tiﬁ/:fg 3 AT T5 R
FRMERRKERNF
ED%'J7§ETT{ﬁJAE 2ER
1&!1%?(13%%% o I MEBLIRTT
REERELBURE DT J?
It‘frzﬁﬁl?ﬁfim
iﬁﬂrfﬁﬁ ﬁ‘?E’Jﬂﬁ—/EZ
BN E

HEE SR EFART
ESOEES - REERE
S5 B A R LRI &
B - 4K EF TS0
161 26 36 70 7 A 2 B

HTE - AEEBE-T
“mEZA=+—HIF
% 0B L 14 5B 15 0

S 1460008 T(Z 2 ==
Fm|E)o

Fik 202324 JEREE (ZR) HRAT 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
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31

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

Market risk (Contd)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments in
equity securities and unlisted funds measured at FVTPL. For
equity securities quoted in the Stock Exchange and unlisted funds
measured at FVTPL, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective instruments had been 10% higher/
lower, the post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 would
decrease/increase by HK$1,666,000 as a result of the changes
in fair value of equity securities measured at FVTPL (2023:
post-tax loss for the year ended would decrease/increase by
HK$3,356,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations
by counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the end of each reporting period.

The management adopts a policy on providing credit facilities to new
customers. A credit investigation, including assessment based on financial
information of the new customers and credit search, is required. The
level of credit granted must not exceed a predetermined level set by the
management. Credit evaluation is performed on a regular basis.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables and contract
assets, management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, management of the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss allowance are made for
irrecoverable amounts on trade receivable and contract assets. In this
regard, management of the Group considers that the credit risk on trade
receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced. The Group applies
simplified approach on trade receivables and contract assets to provide
for ECL. ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed
individually. The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing,
repayment history, past due status and forward-looking information
including subsequent settlement pattern of the respective customers. As
part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applied internal
credit rating for its customers and applying the estimated loss rate ranging
from 0.00% to 4.58% (2023: 0.00% to 4.10%) over the gross carrying
amounts.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there is a debtor who went into
liquidation process. The gross amount of credit-impaired trade receivables
and contract assets of this debtor are HK$822,000 and HK$2,630,000
respectively as at 31 March 2024.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure limited to
certain customers. The Group’s largest debtor contributed approximately
36% (2023: 51%) of the Group’s trade receivables and 21% (2023: 43%)
of the Group’s contract assets, respectively. The Group's five largest
debtors contributed approximately 81% (2023: 88%) of the Group’s
trade receivables and 73% (2023: 72%) of the Group’s contract assets,
respectively.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management of the Group makes
periodic collective assessment as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. For the year ended 31 March 2024, impairment loss
of HK$ 1,782,000 (2023: nil) was recognised by applying the estimated
loss rate ranging from 0.00% to 15.01% (2023: 0.00%) over the gross
carrying amounts.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group’s debt instruments at amortised cost mainly comprise listed
bonds issued by companies listed in the Stock Exchange. The Group
determines whether the debt instruments held by the Group have
suffered from significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition by
comparing the credit rating and other qualitative benchmarks that affect
the credit quality of the debt instruments at initial recognition and at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, as an issuer of a debt instrument has
suffered from significant financial difficulty, that debt instrument held
by the Group is therefore considered as credit-impaired. The Group
estimates the probability of default and the loss given default of the
debt instrument with reference to relevant default studies published
by the credit rating agencies after taking into account forward-looking
information available without undue cost or effort. In view of the above,
the Group’s management considers the ECL allowance on the debt
instruments is adequate at 3| March 2024 and 2023.

Short term bank deposits and bank balances

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023 the credit risk on short term bank
deposits and bank balances of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation and credit ratings and no
history of default in the past and no impairment loss allowance for short
term bank deposits and bank balances was recognised. The Group has
limited exposure to any single financial institution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial
assets at amortised cost and contract assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:
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ERIE(E)
HEEREEEEREE(E)
1EER R EF S ()
TRFMBEETREBEESIER
1&5721-?%@&&&%%%5!1@55@@
MEERAGNEEAENEZER

Gy .
AA

As at 31 March

R=R=t-8
2024 2013
ZE-RE CRCF
External credit  Internal credit [2mor  Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes rating rating  lifetime ECL amount amount
b mE  nERNRH
i3 RET& FEFR  RAREER i REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR
Financial assets at amortised costs REHHASIRNEREE
Trade receivables B 15 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 146,467 67,708
TR M 2R
FEER
15 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 822 -
R M 2EEd
EEER
(FEHE)
Other receivables and deposts At EYGERES l6 NIA Note 2 |2m ECL 15,534 5758
0 li W2 nEREH
‘ Ehka
Debt istruments at amortised cost ~ REHRATIRMBER LA 18 A3to Baal NIA |Im ECL 6523 6523
A3% Bl TER  EAES
[ERER
(2023 Baa\)
(Z3z=&:
Baa\)
N/A Note3  Lifetime ECL 1733 1951
cred\t impaired)
Qi fifi3 ﬁ%
“EE
) el
Short term bank deposts RERTER 20 Aa3-A3 N/A |2m ECL - 52621
A3EA3 MER AR
[EEBR
Bank balances RiTiEs 20 Aal-A3 N/A [2m ECL 44634 61360
ALEA TER EAES
(2003:A2-A3) fFEBE
(Z2-=F:
AL EA3)
Other items HIER
Contract assets aBhEE 17 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 205054 234819
AaH fifzt | g
[EEBR
17 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 2,630 -
(credit-impaired)
TR W aup
EEER
(fEEHE)

Fik 202324 JEREE (ER) HRAT 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
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3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Notes:

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the impairment loss allowance at lifetime ECL. ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed individually. The assessment is based on the
internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history, past due status and forward-looking

information including subsequent settlement pattern of the respective customers.

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group mainly uses past due
information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HK$12,410,000 of these balances (2023: nil) are past due at 31 March 2024.

3. For credit-impaired debt instruments at amortised cost, the Group assessed the lifetime
ECL with reference to relevant default studies published by the credit rating agencies after

taking into account forward-looking information available without undue cost or effort.

The following table shows the movement in [2m ECL and lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables, contract assets and debt
instruments at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 3. @®MIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) MERBEERRRBEK(Z)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd) 1EE/E R RsER S (&)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
2HRBEEER HRBEEER
(REREEEHE) (REEEAE)
Debt
instruments
Trade Contract Other Trade Contract ~ at amortised
receivables assets  receivables receivables assets cost Total
g
g2 fft 87 ERATIR
EhRE  AKEE  BURE BURE ANEE  NEBIA it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tn TEn T TR TEn T
Asat | April 2022 W=E--£mA-A 163 90 - - - 1426 1679
Changes due to financia instruments IR —BREREHIA
recognised as at | April EYNEY
— Impairment losses reversed —BEEREER (%) (7) - - - - (167)
— Impairment losses recognised —BRRREER 8 161 = = = 47 216
New financial assets orignated BEFARRENERER
or purchased 482 1231 = = - - 1713
Asat 31 March 2023 R-B-=£ZA=1-H 558 1,410 - - - 1473 341
Changes due to financia instruments ~—~ RNEA—ARAEBTREY
recognised as at | Apri: 0EE :
— Impairment losses reversed —BEEREEE (482) (129) = = = = (1)
— Impairment losses recognised —BERRERE 8l 19 = 37 903 118 1358
—Transfer to credit-mpaired —BBNEERE (1) 75) = | 75 £ =
New financil assets orignated BEFSCRE NERAR
or purchased 34 456 1,762 784 284 - 3640
Asat 31 March 2024 R=B-BE=A=1-A 690 515 1,782 822 1,262 1,591 6,662
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31

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the
trade receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
and lease liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate at the end of each reporting period.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
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For the year ended 3| March 2024
HE-Z-MF=A=+—-HIFE

EWMTE(E)
MEEMREEEEREE(EZ)

Liquidity risk (Contd) AL/ ()
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate | year [-2 years cash flows amount
ik S22 AEBHE
BBRAE —FR —EWF RELE REAE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT F#7 7 7
Asat3l March 2024 R-ZB-ME=A=+—H
Trade and bills payables & ZFER HIBRENRIE N/A N 105,339 - 105,339 105,339
Other payablesand ~ EfERT FRIE K
accrued charges Bt ER N/A i 103,138 - 103,138 103,138
Bank borrowings RITER 712 35,089 - 35,089 35,000
Lease liabilities HERE 7.19 2427 275 2,702 2594
245,993 275 246,268 246,071
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate | year |-2 years cash flows amount
¥ REERE
BRI —FR —EMF st RE&{E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR
Asat3l March 2023 RZ-Z-ZF=H=+-H
Trade payables BHEMNTE N/A 7N 72,174 - 72,174 72,174
Other payablesand ~ EfER FRIB R
accrued charges T ER N/A T 120,38 - 120,381 120,381
Lease liabilties HERE 325 592 48 640 630
193,147 48 193,195 193,185
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particulan,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Fair value as at

RTIIRHNAYE

31 March 2024
“ECQmE
= H=iiSaE

Financial instruments

SRMIE

31

31 March 2023
—EC-=E
=A=t-H

SRMIAE)
SRITEQNFEFE

A 1 BB N FEFE K
EEFYFEEENNFE
REEBDMBEETIR SR
BHAXRZ AT EE - Tf%?mf/\ﬁl]
METZEMEEATFENER
(EEREEFERAERNE A
HIE) URIRAFEAEH A
BN BREEKATEAER
BARNFEEBNTR(E—ZEF
=) e

Valuation
Fair value  technique(s)
hierarchy ~ and key input(s)
EERER
ATERE IERAEE

Equity securities
listed in Hong Kong:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity securities
listed in Hong Kong:

HK$6,758,000 HK$18,021,000

BRATEFABRNEREE REBLMARAES : REBLTNRAER :
6,758,000/8 7T 18,021,000 7T

Unlisted funds Unlisted funds

in overseas: in overseas:

HK$13,193,000 HK$22,170,000

MR ETES RBIMOR ETES

13,193,000/ 7T 22,170,000 7T

There is no transfers among Level | and Level 2 during both periods.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no
forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is
HK$ 1,500 per employee per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme recognised in profit or loss represent contributions paid or
payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group are
disclosed in notes 6(a) and 9.

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group has the
obligation to pay Long Service Payment (“LSP") to qualifying employees
in Hong Kong upon retirement, subject to a minimum of 5 vyears
employment period, based on this formula: Last monthly wages (before
termination of employment) % 2/3 X Years of service. Last monthly wages
are capped at HK$22,500 while the amount of long service payment
shall not exceed HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a post-
employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the Group’s mandatory MPF
contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns thereof (collectively,
the “Eligible Offset Amount”), for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable to
an employee (the “"Offsetting Arrangement”). The LSP obligation, if any, is
presented on a net basis.
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32.

(3138

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Contd)

The Employment & Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 was gazetted on |7
June 2022, which will eventually abolish the Offsetting Arrangement.
The Amendment will come into effect prospectively from a date to be
determined by the Hong Kong SAR Government, which is expected
to be in 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under the amended Ordinance,
the Eligible Offset Amount after the Transition Date can only be applied
to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but no longer eligible
to offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the
LSP obligations before the Transition Date will be grandfathered and
calculated based on the Last monthly wages immediately preceding the
Transition Date.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2024, performance guarantees of HK$ 145,243,000
(2023: HK$178,899,000) were given by banks in favour of the Group’s
customers as security for the due performance and observance of the
Group's obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group
and its customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance
to its customers to whom performance guarantees have been given,
such customers may demand the banks to pay to them the sum or
sum stipulated in such demand. The Group will become liable to
compensate such banks accordingly. The performance guarantees will
be released upon completion of the contract works. The performance
guarantees were granted under the banking facilities with details as set
out in note 26.

At the end of each reporting period, as represented by the directors
of the Company, they do not consider it is probable that a claim will be
made against the Group.
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For the year ended 3| March 2024
BE_T-_NF=A=1+—HILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34 BAEE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—8
2024 2023
—BoEF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Capital expenditure in respect of the B RTAMER N ERE
acquisition of property and equipment B A AR
contracted for but not provided in the EISE LN
consolidated financial statements 21 21

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 6 December 2016, the Company conditionally adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by its
shareholders on the same date, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible employees (whether full time or part
time, including any executive director), the non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any

35. HERRAESTE
RZZE—XRF+=-HAB ' &RQ
AR ER RN R B BB RE
REBIGHEFEMERETE (%
e EBEEMNREART
EAH B AR AEEEAKE
NAREFREBEEAEZEMR

subsidiary or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any BERNSEEES (T2 BEoR

equity interest and other eligible participants as specified under the
Scheme. The adoption of the Scheme became unconditional upon the
listing of the Company on 3 January 2017.The Scheme has a life of 10

years.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption

of the Scheme.
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36. BAEAQTHEARRFZHNER
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2024 2023
—ECMmE ZET=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets FkREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARAIRE 23 23
Loan to a subsidiary —FNBARINER 18,000 18,000
Debt instruments at amortised cost BB AT BRI ER T A 6,665 6,523
Financial assets at fair value through RATFEFABED
profit or loss TREE 19,899 40,110
44,587 64,656
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits HibEREIE - 1e
and prepayments NIAf A 267 573
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG ENE] 33,601 6,795
Debt instruments at amortised cost RN AT RNER LA - 478
Short term bank deposits EHIRTTIF K - 2,500
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRKIRS 2,873 10233
36,741 20,579
Current liability REEE
Other payables and accrued charges HEf B R ERE 278 259
Net current assets REHEERE 36,463 20,320
Net assets EEBE 81,050 84,976
Capital and reserves BEAXR #E
Share capital AR 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) e (PR EE) 77,050 80,976
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZRA F#EA A (LR 81,050 84,976
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36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 3| March 2024
HE-Z-MF=A=+—-HIFE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36, ABEALXTUBRRRNESR
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) (%)
Note: BT
Movement in the Company’s reserves AARNREERS
Retained
profits
Share Other (accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
RER A
BRAD S E Hits (R5HER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At | April 2022 N\—E-—FPMA—H 83,223 23 19,113 102,359
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREBEREERZEE
for the year = (3.383) (3,383)
Dividends recognised as distribution AP IKEARS - (18,000) (18,000)
At 31 March 2023 R-Z-=f=A=+—8 83223 23 2.270) 80976
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREBEIEERZ S
for the year = = (3,926) (3,926)
At 31 March 2024 R-B-mE=A=+—0 83223 23 (6,196) 77,050
PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. MIBLARMEE

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of each reporting

period are as follows:

Place

Issued and fully
paid s,hare capital

ARRIMBARREREHRD
FIBMT

Equity interest attributable

to the Group as at

ARER TS B ARERE

31 March
2024 2023

Name of subsidiary of incorporation Place of operation o&T =A=t-H Principal activities
HEARER it genk BRARRA “BImE —To=F IEED
Triumph Legend* The BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Triumph Legend* AERUES R 1000ETT 100% 100% RE R
Blissful Choice* The BVI Hong Kong US$2,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bisful Choice* RERIES Bt 2000%7T 100% 00% AR
Shun Hing HK* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,800,000 100% 100%  Provision of E&M
) i i L engneering services
JEEEE B BB 480000087 100% 0% it e TR
Golden Light Engineering  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$250,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited”

BALRARARY AR BiE 250000787 100% 00% EEXH

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company AARARIEERE B AR
# Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company E AARARIRERE ZMEAR

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period or at any time during both years.

BMEMBARE RN HREHRLM
118 5 &£ B9 A fr] 5 8] 3 1T (R (AT (B 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024

BE-_Z-_NME=A=+—HILFE

38.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 38.

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

RMETHELESENHER

TRFANWAEEREZSAESL
EFE’J (g BREERIERE
2 MEIPELNABER
HeEMEXAKRRERENAE
Elzv?é-\ i/}m%i%qj/\’%%%ﬁﬁ
EHIRERENAE -

Dividends Lease Bank
payable liabilities  borrowings Total
EARE #HEEE HBITEX st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At | April 2022 RZE-—#MA—H - 2,751 - 2,751
Financing cash flows MERESME (18,000) (2,444) - (20,444)
Dividends declared BEEIRRE 18,000 - - 18,000
New leases entered and RS RHEEEBET
leases modified - 274 - 274
Finance costs BERA - 49 = 49
At 31 March 2023 —=%=H=+—8H - 630 - 630
Financing cash flows BERERE - 2,151) 32,990 30,839
New leases entered and HEE Y REEBET
leases modified - 3908 - 3908
Finance costs BB A = 207 2010 2217
At 31 March 2024 RZE-_MFEF=A=+—H - 2,594 35,000 37,594
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Summary of Financial Information

MBENMBE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five TXHIFEEERKEZEE T HHRERD
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is ~ AEBE R EAMBKFENEEREERA
set out below. BEOHME -

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLFE

2020 2021 2002 2023 2024

—ToTF —BC& —T-C —E-o=F —ECME

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

FHL FHT FHL FHL T

Revenue Wi 568428 707,590 753327 954,255 876,177

Gross profit EM 54765 61,398 45599 8656 16,289

Profit (loss) for the year ERET (E18) 26027 44,134 11733 (11,002) (15211)
Earnings (loss) per share FREMN (B8)

Basic (HK cents) EAR (L) 65 1.0 29 (28) (38)

FR2023-24 IEFEE (ER) ARAE 135



Summary of Financial Information

MBERBE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
RERE  RERER

As at 3| March

R=A=t+-8
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
-2 “E-F i —a —ZT-=F ZECWE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL FET THET TETL THET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 44369 65,148 75772 75,085 57,955
Current assets MBEE 340,54 44723 43),341 43 655 437493
Total assets BEE 384910 512379 508,113 506,740 495,448
LIABILITIES 8
Current liabilities TEaE 122,669 215,053 216312 262267 265316
Non-current liabilities ERBARE 4872 2623 965 356 1,226
Total liabilities wag 127,541 217676 217277 262,623 266,542
EQUITY Ex
Total equity attributable to RORIHE AL
owners of the Company s 257,369 294703 290836 244117 228,906
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